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NOTICE OF THE 73RD SEVENTY- THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Trade Wings Limited 

 

  

Notice is hereby given that the 73rd (Seventy-Third) Annual General Meeting of the 

Shareholders of Trade Wings Limited will be held on Monday, 18th September 2023 at 10:30 

A.M at the registered office of the Company situated at 1st Floor, Naik Building, Opp. Don 

Bosco High School, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Panaji, Goa - 403001 to transact the following 

business: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statement of the 

Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 together with the reports of the 

Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or 

without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution; 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial Statement of the Company for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2023 together with the reports of the Board of 

Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the members, be and are hereby 

considered and adopted.” 

 

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statement of the 

Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 along with the report of Auditors 

thereon, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the 

following resolution as Ordinary Resolution. 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company 

for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 along with the report of Auditors thereon, 

as circulated to the members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 

 

3. To appoint Dr Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 0221661), who retires by rotation and being 

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
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To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act, 

2013, Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 0221661), who retires by rotation and being 

eligible offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a director 

of the company.” 

 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

4. To re-appoint Ms. Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797), as an independent director 

of the company, whose tenure as Independent Director expires on 13th November 2023 

and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), 

the following resolution as Special Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provision of Section 149, 152 read with Schedule 

IV and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and as per 

applicable Regulations and Schedules of Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and pursuant to 

the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of 

the Company, the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded 

to  re-appoint Ms Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) as an Independent Director 

of the Company, who was appointed as Independent Director of the Company at the 

69th Annual General Meeting of the Company and who holds office of the Independent 

Director up to 13th November 2023 and eligible for being re-appointed as an 

Independent Director to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years  with effect 

from 13th November 2023 till 13th November 2028 subject to her compliance with the 

requirements as prescribed under the Act with regard to Independent Director and such 

other provisions as may be applicable. 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT during the tenure of her appointment, the said 

Independent Director shall not be liable to retire by rotation and that she shall be paid 

sitting fees and reimbursement of expenses for attending Board and Committee 

Meetings, as may be permissible under law, including profit related commission as may 

be allowed from time to time. 
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FURTH ER RESOLVED TBA T the Board of Directors (including its Committee 

thereof) and /or Company Secretary of the Company be and is/are hereby authorized to 

do all the aclS, deeds and things which are necessary to give effect to the appointment 

of aforesaid person as Independent Director of the Company." 

5. To consider the continuation of directorship of Dr. Shailendra P. MittaJ (DIN: 

0022166 1 ), as Chainnan and Managing Director who will attain the age of Seventy 

years (70 years) in this Financial Year and in this regard, to consider and if thought tit, 
to pass the fo llowing resolution with or without modification as a Special Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being 

in force) consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the 

continuation of Directorship of Dr. Shailendra P Mittal (DIN: 00221661), who is liable 

to retire by rotation, on the Board of the Company notwithstanding his attaining the age 

of Seventy (70) years on November 24, 2023." 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Trade Wings Limited 

Dr. Sbaiie1f'i(,;. P. Mittal 

Chainnan & Managing Director 

DIN: 00221661 

Address: 62-A, Mittal Bhavan, Pedder 

Road, Mumbai 400026 

Registered Office: I st Floor, Naik Building, 

Opp. Don Bosco High School, Mahatma Gandhi Road, 

Panaji, Goa 40300 I. 

C IN: L63040GA 1949PLCOOO I 68 

Website: W\ w.Lradewj11gs.i11 
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Date: 0(1'" August, 2023 

Place: Mumbai. 
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NOTES: 

 

1. The relevant material statement setting out the material facts pursuant to Section 102 of 

Companies Act, 2013 in relation to the items of Special Business in the Notice is annexed 

hereto and forms part of this notice. 

 

2. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 

and vote instead of himself and such proxy need not be a Member of the Company. The 

proxy, in order to be effective, must be duly completed, stamped and signed and should be 

received at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the 

commencement of the meeting. 

 

3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of the Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding 

in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying 

voting rights. A Member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the 

Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall 

not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. A proxy form is enclosed herewith. 

Proxies submitted on behalf of the Companies, societies etc., must be supported by an 

appropriate resolution/ authority, as applicable. The Proxy-holder shall prove his identity at 

the time of attending the Meeting. 

 

4. The instrument appointing a proxy shall (a) be in writing; and (b) be signed by the appointer 

or his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the appointer is a body corporate, be under 

its seal or be signed by an officer or an attorney duly authorised by it. 

 

5. The Company's Registrar and Transfer Agents are M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited 

having their Head Office at 1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis, 

Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai - 400059. 

 

6. The Route Map of venue of the AGM is given after the notice. 

 

7. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed 

from 12th September, 2023 to 18th September, 2023 (both days inclusive). 

 

8. Members are requested to: 

 

(i) Send all share transfer lodgements (Physical mode)/ correspondence to the Registrar 

and Share Transfer Agent up to the record date. 

(ii) Write to the Compliance Officer of the Company for their queries or if desirous of 

obtaining any information, concerning the accounts and operations of the Company, 
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at the Company's Registered Office at least seven days before the date of the Annual 

General Meeting in order to enable the management to keep the information ready 

at the meeting. 

(iii) Quote Registered Folio Number or DP ID/ Client ID in all the correspondence. For 

the convenience of the Members, attendance slip is enclosed in the Annual Report. 

Members/ Proxy Holders/ Authorized Representatives are requested to fill in and 

sign at the space provided therein and submit the same at the venue of the Meeting. 

Proxy/ Authorized Representatives of Members should state on the attendance slip 

as 'Proxy' or 'Authorized Representative', as the case may be. Further, those who 

hold shares in demat form are requested to write their Client Id and DP Id and those 

who hold shares in physical forms are requested to write their folio number on the 

attendance slip for easy identification at the meeting. 

 

9. Corporate Members intending to send their representatives to attend the Meeting are 

requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the board resolution authorizing their 

representatives to attend and vote at the Meeting on their behalf. 

 

10. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 

(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 facility for making nominations is available for 

shareholders in respect of the physical shares held by them. Form SH 13 for making 

nomination can be obtained from R&TA. The duly filled in nomination form shall be sent 

to R&TA at their above-mentioned address. Members holding shares in electronic form may 

contact their respective Depository Participants for availing this facility. 

 

11. The Securities and Exchange Board of India has mandated the submission of the Permanent 

Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members holding 

shares in electronic form are requested to submit their PAN to their Depositories 

Participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form shall submit their PAN details to 

R&TA. 

 

12. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, 

email address, telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, 

nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, 

bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held 

by them in electronic form and to M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited in case the shares 

are held by them in physical form. 

 

13. Members, who are holding Shares in identical order of names in more than one Folio, are 

requested to apply to the Company/ R&TA along with the relevant Share Certificates for 

consolidation of such Folios in one Folio. 
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14. Members are informed that in case joint holders attend the Meeting, only such joint holder 

who is higher in the order of names in the Register of Members/ Beneficial Holders will be 

entitled to vote. 

 

15. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection by any 

member or beneficial owner without payment of fee and by any other person on payment of 

INR 100/- (One Hundred Rupees) for each inspection, at the Registered Office of the 

Company between 11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. on any working day except on Public Holidays, 

Saturdays & Sundays, up to and including the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting 

of the Company. 

 

16. As a measure of economy, copies of the Annual Report will not be distributed at the Annual 

General Meeting. Shareholders are, therefore, requested to kindly bring their copies at the 

time of attending the Meeting. 

 

 

17. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed 

companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from, April 1, 2019, 

except in case of request received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of 

this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio 

management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting 

their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company or Company’s 

Registrars and Transfer Agents, M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited for assistance in 

this regard. 

 

18. As per Sections 101, 136 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,2013, read 

with the Rules made there under and circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 

Companies can now send various reports, documents, communications, including but not 

limited to Annual Reports to its Members through electronic mode at their registered e-mail 

addresses. The Company believes in green initiative and is concerned about the 

environment. Hence, Annual Report including inter alia the Report of the Board of 

Directors, Auditors' Report, Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow 

Statement, notice of this AGM, instructions for e-voting, attendance slip, proxy form, etc. 

is being sent by electronic mode to all Members whose addresses are registered with the 

Company/ R&TA/ depositories. In compliance SEBI Circular circular no.  

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 and SEBI circular no. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th January, 2020, Notice of the AGM along 

with the Annual Report 2022-23 is being sent only through electronic mode to those 

Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. Members 
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may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2022-23 will also be available on the 

Company’s website www.evotingindia.com and websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE 

Limited www.bseindia.com and on the website of CDSL i.e. www.cdslindia.com. 

 

To support "Green initiative", Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses, so 

far, are requested to register their e-mail addresses with their depository participants, in 

respect of electronic holdings. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to 

kindly register their e-mail addresses with the Company's R&TA at their abovementioned 

address. Annual Report is also available on the Company's website at www.tradewings.in 

and made available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during the 

business hours. 

19. Voting through electronic means: 

 

A. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 

20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, SS-2 and 

Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide the Members, the facility to 

exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the Seventy-

Third (73rd) Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means. The Company has 

appointed Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL) for facilitating e-voting, 

 

B. Members are requested to note that the Company is providing facility for remote e-

voting and the businesses as given in the notice of Seventy-Third (73rd) Annual General 

Meeting (AGM) may be transacted through electronic voting system. It is hereby 

clarified that it is not mandatory for a Member to vote using the remote e-voting facility. 

The Members shall note that the facility for voting shall also be provided at the meeting 

through poll paper and the Members (as on cut-off date) attending the meeting who 

have not casted their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their voting rights 

at the meeting. If the members have already cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to 

the meeting they may attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again 

and his vote, if any, cast at the meeting shall be treated as invalid. 

C. A Member may avail of the facility at his/ her/ its discretion, as per the instructions 

provided herein: 

(i) The voting period begins on 15th September 2023 at 10:30 AM and ends on 17th 

September 2023 at 05:00 P.M. During this period shareholders of the Company, 

holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-

off date (record date) of 11th September, 2023 may cast their vote electronically. 

The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.  

(ii) Log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com 

(iii) Click on Shareholders/ Members. 
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(iv) Now Enter your User ID: 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number 

registered with the Company. 

(v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to 

www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any company, then 

your existing password is to be used. 

(vii) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax 

Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as 

physical shareholders) 

Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/ 

Depository Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their 

name and the 8 digits of the sequence number (refer serial no. printed 

on the name and address sticker/ Postal Ballot Form/ mail) in the PAN 

field. 

In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable 

number of 0s before the number after the first two characters of the 

name in CAPITAL letters. E.g. If your name is` 

Ramesh Kumar with serial number 1 then enter RA00000001 in 

the PAN field. 

 

Dividend Bank 

Details OR Date 

of Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy 

format) as recorded in your demat account or in the or company records 

in order to login. 

If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, 

please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank 

details field as mentioned in instruction (iv). 

 

(viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab. 

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly to the 

Company selection screen. However, members holding shares in demat form 

will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein they are required to 

mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note 

that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for 

resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided 

that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly 
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recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 

care to keep your password confidential. 

(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for 

e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

(xi) Click on the EVSN for the relevant 'Trade Wings Limited' on which you choose 

to vote. 

(xii) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against 

the same the option "YES/ NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as 

desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option 

NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

(xiii) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire 

Resolution details. 

(xiv) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". 

A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click 

on "OK", else to change your vote, click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modify 

your vote. 

(xv) Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to 

modify your vote. 

(xvi) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on "Click here 

to print" option on the Voting page. 

(xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User 

ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the 

details as prompted by the system. 

(xviii) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting 

available for android based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded 

from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users can download 

the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively. 

Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting 

on your mobile. 

(xix) Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians 

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e., other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) 

and Custodian are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register 

themselves as Corporates. 

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the 

entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be create using 

the admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link 

the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 
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• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they 

would be able to cast their vote.  

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) 

which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be 

uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

(xx) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the 

Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at 

www.evotingindia.com. under help section or write an email to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 

In case of members receiving the physical copy: 

 

(i) Please follow all steps from sl. no. (i) to sl. no. (xix) above to cast vote. 

(ii) The voting period begins on 15th September 2023 at 10:30 AM and ends on 17th 

September 2023 at 05:00 P.M. During this period shareholders of the Company, 

holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off 

date (record date) of 11th September, 2023 may cast their vote electronically. The 

e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.  

(iii) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the 

Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at 

www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 

D. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up 

value of equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e., 11th September, 

2023. 

E. Ms. Harshika D. Bhadricha (PCS: F10418 and CP:12622), Partner of M/s. GHV& Co, 

Practising Company Secretaries, Mumbai have been appointed as the Scrutinizer by the 

Board of Directors to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

 

F. Voting shall be allowed at the end of discussion on all the resolutions mentioned in the 

notice of this meeting with the assistance of Scrutinizer, by use of ballot paper for all 

those members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing 

the remote e-voting facility. 

 

G. The Scrutinizer(s) shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the general 

meeting, first count the votes cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast 

through e-voting in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of 

the Company and make, within a period not exceeding two (2) days from the conclusion 
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of the meeting a Consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favor or 
against, if any, forthwith to the Chainnan of the Company or a person authorized by 
him in writing who shall countersign the same. 

H. The Results declared along with t.he report of the ScruLinizer's shall be placed on the 

website of the Company www.tradewings.in and on the website of CDSL immediately 
after the declaration of result by the Chairman or by a person duly authori2ed. The 

results shall also be immediately forwarded to BSE Limited, where the equity shares of 

the Company are listed. 

r. Subject to receipt ofrequisite nwnber of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to have 

been passed on the date of the 73n1 AGM i.e., on 18th September, 2023. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Trade Wings Limited 

Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 00221661 

Address: 62-A, Mittal Bhavan, 

Pedder Road, Mumbai - 400026 

Date: O(ilhAugust, 2023 
Place: Mumbai 

11 
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Route Map of venue of the AGM: 

 

 

                          Dayanand Bandokar Marg 

 

                                      The Hotel Mandovi 

                                       Adidas Brand Centre 

 

                              Bank of Baroda M G Road 

                                                           Café Real 

                                                                              ORRA Jewellery 

 

 

 M G Road 

 

 Delhi Darbar 

 

 

 

 

                                                                            Dr TB CunhaRd 

                                                                                                                      D.A NoronhaRd 

Venue Of AGM‐ 01st Floor, Naik Buldg, Opp. Don Bosco High School, M.G. Road, Panaji 

North Goa - 403001 

From Goa International Airport‐25.1 km 

From Karmali Railway Station via NH748‐12.5 km      
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Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 

ITEM NO.4 

 

Re-appointment of Ms Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) as Independent Director 

of the Company: 

Ms Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) was appointed as Independent Director on the 

Board of the Company with effect from November 13, 2018 for the first term of five  

consecutive years in accordance with the provisions of Sections 149, 152 & Schedule IV of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 

Rules, 2014. Ms Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) will complete her first term of five 

years on November 12, 2023. 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee, on the basis of the report of performance 

evaluation of Independent Directors, has recommended the re-appointment Ms Jacinta Bazil 

Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) as Independent Directors for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive 

years on the Board of the Company. Further, the Board, based on the performance evaluation 

of Independent Directors and as per the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee, considers that, given her background and experience and contributions made by 

her during his tenure, the continued association of Ms Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) 

would be beneficial to the Company and it is desirable to continue to avail his services as 

Independent Directors. Accordingly, the Board had considered and approved the resolution 

relating to reappointment of Ms Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) as Independent 

Directors w.e.f. November 13, 2023 for a period of 5 (five) consecutive years each (being their 

second term), subject to the approval of shareholders in their General Meeting scheduled to be 

held on 18th September, 2023. 

It is proposed to re-appoint Ms Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) as Independent 

Directors of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation and to hold office for a second term 

of 5 (five) consecutive years each on the Board of the Company with effect from November 

13, 2023. 

Section 149(I0) of the Act provides that an independent director shall hold office for a term of 

up to five consecutive years on the Board and shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing a 

special resolution by the company and disclosure of such appointment in its Board's report. 

Further, Section 149(11) provides that an independent director may hold office for up to two 

consecutive terms. 
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Ms Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) is not disqualified from being appointed as 

Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given his consent to act as Independent 

Director of the Company. 

The Company has received declaration from Ms Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) 

confirming that she meets the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of 

the Act and as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In the opinion of the Board, she fulfills the conditions for re-appointment as Independent 

Director and she is independent of the Management. 

Pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 

of India, brief profile of Ms Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) is annexed to this Notice. 

A copy of the draft letter of appointment, setting out the terms and conditions of her 

appointment is available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the 

Company during business hours on any working day and is also available on the Company's 

website. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, other than 

Ms Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) for her reappointment, is concerned or interested, 

financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No.6 of the Notice. 

Ms Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797) is not related to any Director or Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company. Further, the relatives of Ms Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 

07557797) may be deemed to be interested in the respective resolutions to the extent of their 

shareholding interest, if any, in the Company. 

The Board, accordingly, recommends passing of the special resolution as set out at Item No.4 

of this Notice, for the approval of the members. 

“Annexure” 

Sr. No. Name of the director Ms. Jacinta Bazil Nayagam 

1. Date of birth March,05 1964 

2. Age 59 years 

3. Nationality Indian 

4. Qualification H.S.C. 

5. Date of First appointment on Board July 5, 2016 

6. Nature of Expertise in specific functional area Tours and Travels 

7. Experience Experience of 15 years in 

the Travel and Tourism 

industry 

6. List of Directorship held in other Companies Nil 

7. Last Remuneration drawn   
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8. Remuneration to be drawn after appointment/re-

appointment 

Nil 

9. Terms and conditions of appointment or re-

appointment 

As given in Explanatory 

Statement to Item No.4 

10. Relationship with Directors, Managers or other 

KMP 

Not related to any other 

Directors /Manager/ KMP 

 

 

 

ITEM NO. 05 

 

CONTINUATION OF DIRECTORSHIP OF DR. SHAIENDRA P. MITTAL AS 

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR WHO WILL ATTAIN THE AGE OF 

SEVENTY YEARS (70 YEARS) IN THIS FINANCIAL YEAR 

 

Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal, is the Chairperson and the Manging Director of the Company, and 

was re-appointed as the Chairperson and the Managing director on 30th May, 2022 for a term 

of 3 years. 

 

Pursuant to section 196(3) (a), Companies Act 2013, no company shall appoint or continue the 

employment of any person as managing director, whole-time director or manager who has 

attained the age of seventy years unless a special resolution is passed to that effect. 

 

Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 00221661) will attain the age of 70 years in November 2023 

and continuation of his chairmanship and Managing director will be subject to the approval by 

the shareholder by Special Resolution. Hence the approval of the shareholders is sought for the 

continuation of his Directorship on the Board of the Company even after attaining the age of 

70 years. 

 

Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal satisfies all the conditions set out in Part-I of Schedule V to the Act as 

also conditions set out under Section 196(3) (a) of the Act for his re-appointment. 

He is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act. 

 

The requisite details and information pursuant to the provisions of (i) the Listing Regulations; 

and (ii) Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India, are provided in the “Annexure” to the Notice.  

 

The Board commends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval 

by the Members. 
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Annexure: 

Name of Director Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal 

Age 69 

Date of Birth  24/11/2023 

No. of Shares held in the Company  9640 shares 

Qualification Graduate in Commerce  

Nature of expertise in specific 

functional areas 

Travel and Tourism 

Disclosure of relationships between 

directors inter-se 

Nil 

Name of the Listed entities in 

which the person holds the 

directorship as on March 31, 2023 

(other than Trade Wings Limited) 

Trade Wings Hotels Limited 

R J Trade Wings Private Limited 

Narayani Hospitality & Academic Institution Private 

Limited 

Name of committees in which the 

person holds membership/ 

chairmanship as on March 31, 2023 

(other than Trade Wings Limited) 

Nil 

 

The Board of the Company is of the opinion that Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal has been an integral 

part of the Board and has provided valuable insights to the Company and his continuation as 

Director will be in the interest of the Company notwithstanding his completion of seventy years 

of age. Hence the Board recommends the resolution set out in item No. 5. 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Trade Wings Limited 

 

The Directors are pleased to present the Seventy-Third Annual Report of the Company and the 

Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 

 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY: 

The financial highlights of the Company (Standalone and Consolidated) are given below. 

Kindly refer the financial statements forming part of this report for detailed financial 

information: 

Particulars F.Y. 2022-23 

(Amount in INR) 

Standalone 

F.Y. 2021-22 

(Amount in INR) 

Standalone 

F.Y. 2022-23 

(Amount in INR) 

Consolidated 

F.Y. 2021-22 

(Amount in INR) 

Consolidated 

Total Income 1,84,62,28,594 75,67,38,050 2,17,87,60,953 89,82,87,324 

Total Expenditure 1,84,42,52,793 77,36,59,232 2,14,92,72,726 92,74,19,543 

Profit/ (loss) before Taxation 19,75,800 (1,69,21,182) 2,94,88,226 (2,91,32,218) 

Less: Provision for Taxation (6,96,392) 2,34,069 38,38,369 23,72,504 

Net Profit/ (loss) after Taxation 12,80,408 (1,71,55,251) 3,33,26,919 (3,15,04,722) 

Balance carried forward to Balance 

Sheet 

12,80,408 (1,71,55,251) 3,33,26,919 (3,15,04,722) 

 

2. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY'S WORKING DURING THE YEAR/ 

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIR: 

 

During the year under review your Company has achieved a revenue of Rs. 1,84,62,28,594 /- 

as compared to turnover of Rs.75,67,38,050 in previous year. The total expenses of the 

Company during the reporting period have increased to Rs. 1,84,42,52,793 from Rs. 

77,36,59,232/- (in lakhs) in the previous year. During the year under review, the profit/loss 
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before tax is Rs. 19,75,800 as compared to loss before tax of Rs.( 1,69,21,182) /- during the 

previous year. 

The consequences of the COVID-19 continue to reverberate across the company's operations, 

as the company is primarily involved in the aviation- tour and travel industries. While the 

company's losses and slowdown in operations over the last two years delayed its momentum, 

the Board of Directors is glad to report to its members that the company has surmounted the 

challenges and returned to its positive momentum. True, the negative and ongoing impact of 

the COVID-19 epidemic continues to weigh on the Company's overall performance. However, 

your directors try to build up and take the required steps to re-establish its run on the path of 

success and profitability in the years to follow, through branch network expansion and 

expansion into allied services. Your Board of Directors ensures the company's growth in the 

subsequent years and strives for a bright future for your company. 

 

3. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS 

As stipulated by Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations, the Company has prepared 

Consolidated Financial Statement in accordance with the applicable accounting standards as 

prescribed under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”). The Consolidated Financial Statement reflects the results of the Company and that of its 

subsidiary and associates. As required under Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, the 

Audited Consolidated Financial Statement together with the Independent Auditors’ Report 

thereon is annexed and forms part of this Report. 

 

The summarized Consolidated Financial Statement is provided above in point No.1 of this 

Report. 

 

4. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY: 

The Company is engaged in the business of travel and travel related services and also in the 

Cargo business. There was no change in nature of business activity during the year. 

 

5. DIVIDEND: 

In view of the losses, your Directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial year 

ended 31st March, 2023.  
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6. RESERVES: 

The Company's total Reserves are Rs (1,66,17,908) /- for the year under review as compared 

to Rs. (1,70,20,814) /- for the previous year. 

 

7. DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONS: 

The Company has received declarations u/s 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 from all the 

Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet the criteria of Independence 

as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and in the opinion of the Board of Directors, all 

the Independent Directors fulfil the criteria of independence as provided u/s 149(6) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder and that they are independent of the 

management. 

 

The Company has a Policy for performance evaluation of Independent Directors, Board, 

Committees and other individual Directors which include criteria for performance evaluation 

of the Non-executive Directors and Executive Directors. 

 

The Board and its Committees evaluations involved questionnaire driven discussions that 

covered a number of key areas/ evaluation criteria inter alia the roles and responsibilities, size 

and composition of the Board and its Committees, dynamics of the Board and its Committees 

and the relationship between the Board and the Management. The results of the reviews were 

discussed by the Board as a whole. Feedback was also sought on the contributions of individual 

Directors. Independent Directors, at their Meeting, conducted the performance review of the 

Chairman, Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole in respect of the financial year 

under review. 

 

Formal Annual Evaluation was made in compliance with all the applicable provisions of the 

Act. The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation results, which reflected the overall 

engagement of the Board and its Committees with the Company. 

 

The following policies of the Company are attached herewith marked as ANNEXURE - 1: 

 

a) Policy for selection of Directors and determining Directors independence; and 

b) Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.   
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None of the Directors are related with each other or Key Managerial Personnel (inter-se). 

 

The composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the 

Company as on March 31, 2023 are as follows: 

 

Sr No Name of Director Designation 

1.  Dr Shailendra Parmeshwar Mittal Chairperson and Managing Director  

2.  Mr Vishwanathan K Nair  Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 

3.  Mr Ramamurthy Vaidhyanathan Independent Director 

4.  Mr Jacinta Bazil Nayagam  Independent Director (Woman) 

5.  Mr Hemant Ramdas Panchal Non-Executive Director 

6.  Ms Zurica David Carton Compliance Officer & Company Secretary 

 

The company has re-appointed Dr Shailendra Mittal, as the Managing Director of the Company 

(on continuation basis, without any interruption/ break in service) for a further period of three 

years with effect from May 30, 2022 till May 29, 2025 which was approved by the Members 

of the Company in the Annual General Meeting held on 18th July, 2022. 

  

7. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

The Company currently has one Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company Viz. Trade Wings Hotels 

Limited. 

Trade Wings Hotels Limited recorded a total income of Rs 34,07,10,076 during the financial 

year 2022-23. The Profit/ Loss after tax stood at Rs 3,20,48,511/- for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2023. 

The Company did not have any Joint Venture or Associate Company during the year under 

review. As required pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 

of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, Form AOC-I forms part of this report, marked as  

ANNEXURE -2. 
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8. DETAILS OF THE COMPANY WHO CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT 

VENTURES / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

Sr No. Name of Company Subsidiary/ Joint ventures/ 

Associate Company 

Date of cessation of 

Subsidiary/ Joint ventures/ 

Associate Company 

NA 

 

9. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

 

The Company has devised appropriate systems and framework for adequate internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements commensurate with the size, scale and 

complexity of its operations including proper delegation of authority, policies and procedures, 

effective IT systems aligned to business requirements, risk based internal audit framework, risk 

management framework and whistle blower mechanism. 

 

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the internal control system to ensure that it remains 

effective and aligned with the business requirements. In case, weaknesses are identified as a 

result of the reviews, new procedures are put in place to strengthen controls. 

 

During the year under review, controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in 

design and operations were observed. The Auditors also report in their Report on adequacy of 

internal financial control. 

 

10. AUDITORS AND AUDIT REPORTS: 

A) STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

M/s. Aalok Mehta & Co., Practising Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 126756W), 

were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company by the shareholders in the 70th Annual 

General Meeting to hold office from the conclusion of the 70th Annual General Meeting of the 

Company till the conclusion of the 75th Annual General Meeting to be held for the financial 

year 2024-25. 
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Auditors' Report 

Audit Report has been issued by M/s Aalok Mehta & Co., Practising Chartered Accountants, 

the Statutory Auditors of the Company. There are no qualifications, reservation or adverse 

remark or disclaimer made by the Auditor, in their report and therefore, there are no further 

explanations to be provided for in this Report. 

 

Further, no fraud has been reported by the auditors under (12) of Section 143 of Companies 

Act, 2013. 

 

B) BRANCH AUDITORS AND CONCURRENT AUDITORS: 

The Company has its branches in more than 34 cities in India. The Members, in the Annual 

General Meeting of the Company held on September 28, 2018 had authorized the Board of 

Directors to appoint Branch Auditors and Concurrent Auditors and to fix their remuneration. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 143(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of 

Directors has appointed Auditors for the purpose of Branch audit and/or concurrent audits. 

 

M/s Aalok Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration No. 126756W), 

M/s V.V. Khare & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration No. 105110W) 

M/s. A N Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountants, AMIT BISSA AND ASSOCIATES, 

Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Membership No 143651), SABS and Associates, Chartered 

Accountants, Pune (Firm Registration No 126840W), Sandeep Agrawal Chartered 

Accountants, Mumbai (Membership No 109375), Powar Samant & Jadhav, Chartered 

Accountants, Kolhapur (Firm Registration No. 119605W),B. Ganguly & Associates, Kolkata 

(Firm Registration No. 318132E) and LKS & COMPANY, Chartered Accountants, Pune (Firm 

Registration No 124481W) had been appointed by the Board as the Branch 

Auditors/Concurrent Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2022-23, to audit the 

various branches of the Company. 

C) INTERNAL AUDITORS: 

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company had constituted the Internal Audit Department. The 

Company had appointed Mr Arun Gawankar as an Internal Auditor of the Company who had 

issued and submitted the internal audit report for every quarter of the financial year 2021-22 
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before the Board of Directors from time to time. After his resignation the Company has 

appointed Mr Suresh Shetty as the Internal Auditor of the Company w.e.f. 29th November, 

2022. 

 

D)  SECRETARIAL AUDITORS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board in their 

meeting held on February 08, 2022 had re-appointed M/s. GHV & Co., Practising Company 

Secretaries, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 

and issue Secretarial Audit Report. Secretarial Audit Report has been issued by M/s. GHV & 

Co., Practising Company Secretaries for the financial year 2022-23 in Form MR - 3 marked as 

ANNEXURE – 3 and forms part of this report.  

The Secretarial Auditors' Report contains adverse remarks with regard to the non- compliance 

under various regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013 and rule made thereunder: 

 

1. The annual audited financial results for quarter 

ended June, 2022 and September, 2022 under regulation 

33 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has not been 

submitted within prescribed timelines to the Stock 

Exchange.  

 

2. The 71st Annual General Meeting of the 

Company for the Financial Year 2020-2021 was held 

on 18th July, 2022 beyond the prescribed timelines 

provided under the provisions of the Section 96 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder 

 

3. A statement showing holding of securities and 

shareholding pattern for quarter ended March, 2022 and 

March 2023, under sub-regulation (1) of regulation 31 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 was submitted 

beyond prescribed timelines to the Stock Exchange. 

 

4. Pursuant to section 73 of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of deposit) 

Rule, 1975 the company has deposits and exempt 

 

With regard to the adverse remarks the 

Directors would like to state that; the 

COVID-19 pandemic affected the regular 

and timely working of the company. With 

lack of staff and proper professional 

guidance we could not finalize the 

accounts and quarterly results within the 

statutory timeline resulting in delay. 

 

However, the company is pleased to 

inform its members, with its best efforts 

the compliance has been done with a 

delay. 

 

 

 

 

 

Due to inadvertence, the Company failed 

to file web form DPT-3, within the 

stipulated time. However, the Company is 

in process to file the web form DPT-3 for 

the Financial Year 2022-23. 
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deposits as per the Financials Statement for the 

Financial Year 2022-23 as on date 31st March, 2023. 

The company has not filed e-form DPT-3 with MCA 

pertaining to deposits for the financial year 2022-23. 

 

5. Certain provisions of Secretarial Standards 1 

and 2 as applicable are not complied with by the 

Company in convening the Board meetings and 

maintenance of Statutory registers. 

 

6. Pursuant to 29(1) regulation of the SAST, Any 

acquirer who acquires shares or voting rights in a target 

company which taken together with shares or voting 

rights, if any, held by him and by persons acting in 

concert with him in such target company, aggregating 

to five per cent or more of the shares of such target 

company, shall disclose their aggregate shareholding 

and voting rights in such target company as per the 

format disclosures under Regulation 29(1) of SEBI 

(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011. 

 

The closing down of the company during 

the COVID-19 has resulted in delay and 

non updation of Statutory Registers.  

 

The top 10 shareholders of the company 

has not changed and being such an old 

listed company the disclosures received at 

the time of acquisition of shares could not 

be located. The Board however, will take 

the effort to receive a fresh disclosure 

from its shareholders and take it on record 

at its Board Meetings in the future. 

 

7. The Company has not yet paid reinstatement 

fees of INR 5,00,0000/- (plus GST@ 18%) Payable 

after receipt of in principle approval for revocation and 

prior to approval for resumption of trading.  The 

company has not paid such amount 

 

8. The company was liable to pay a SOP fine of 

INR 27,55,000/- + applicable GST. No Proof for the 

same found. The company has not paid such amount. 

However, the company has requested for reduction in 

amount. 

The Company has faced huge losses 

during the past two years as a result of the 

economic slowdown arising from the 

COVID-19. With the best efforts of the 

directors and dedicated employees the 

company has begun on its upward trend 

however the company is still not in a 

position to pay such heavy fines and 

reinstatement fees. The company has 

made an application requesting BSE to 

reverse the fines imposed. The Board of 

Directors are hopeful that BSE will 

understand the financial position of the 

company and adhere to this request. 

 

11. ANNUAL RETURN: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92 of the Act read with Rule 12 of 

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, Annual Return of the Company 

as at 31st March, 2023 is uploaded on the website of the Company at www.tradewings.in. 
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12. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 

The information as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 

(Account) Rules, 2014 with respect to conservation of energy, technology absorption & foreign 

exchange earnings and outgo are given in ANNEXURE - 4 forming part of this report. 

 

13. DETAILS OF COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD: 

 

Currently the Board has 3 Committees: The Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee. The Composition of various 

committees and compliances, are as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 

along with the Rules made there under. Brief details of various Committees are provided 

hereunder: 

 

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE COMPOSITION: 

 

The Board has an Audit Committee in conformity with the provisions of Section 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. As on March 31, 2023, the constitution of the Audit Committee was as 

follows: 

 

Name Designation Non-Executive/ Independent 

Mr Vaidhyanathan Ramamurthy 

(DIN: 02318827) 

Chairman Non-Executive,  

Independent Director 

Mr Hemant Ramdas Panchal   

(DIN: 08602861) 

Member Non-Executive Director 

Mrs Jacinta Bazil Nayagam  

(DIN: 07557797) 

Member Non-Executive, Independent 

(Woman) Director 

 

The Audit Committee met 6 (Six) times during the financial year 2022-23. The details of 

number of Committee Meetings held during the year 2022-23 and attendance of Members of 

the Committee are given in table below: 
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Date of Audit 

Committee Meeting 

Name of the Director 

Mr Vaidhyanathan 

Ramamurthy 

Mr Hemant 

Ramdas Panchal 

Mrs Jacinta Bazil 

Nayagam 

26.04.2022 Yes Yes Yes 

04.07.2022 Yes Yes Yes 

21.07.2022 Yes Yes Yes 

28.10.2022 Yes Yes Yes 

29.11.2022 Yes Yes Yes 

08.02.2023 Yes Yes Yes 

 

All the major steps impacting the financials of the Company are undertaken only after the 

consultation of the Audit Committee. 

 

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company had accepted all the 

recommendations of the Audit Committee. 

 

B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

The Board has Nomination and Remuneration Committee in conformity with the provisions of 

Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 which comprises of Non-executive Directors. 

 

As on March 31, 2023, the composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as 

follows: 

 

Name Designation Non-Executive/ Independent 

Mr Vaidhyanathan Ramamurthy 

(DIN: 02318827) 

Chairman Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

Mrs Jacinta Bazil Nayagam 

(DIN: 07557797) 

Member Non-Executive Independent 

(Woman) Director 

Mr Hemant Ramdas Panchal     

(DIN: 08602861)  

Member Non-Executive Director 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 1 (One) time during the financial year 

2022-23. The details of number of Committee Meetings held during the year 2022-23 and 

attendance of Members of the Committee are given in table below: 
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Date of 

Nomination and 

Remuneration 

Committee 

Meeting 

Name of Director 

Mr Vaidhyanathan 

Ramamurthy 

 

Mrs Jacinta Bazil 

Nayagam 

Mr Hemant 

Ramdas Panchal     

26-04-2022 Yes Yes Yes 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee identifies persons who are qualified to become 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel in accordance with the criteria laid down and 

Nomination Policy. The appointment of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel is 

recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to the Board during financial 

year 2022-23. Your Company has devised the Nomination Policy for the appointment of 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company who have ability to lead the 

Company towards achieving sustainable development. The Company has also framed Policy 

relating to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees. A 

copy of the policy is appended as ANNEXURE - 6 to the Report. 

 

C. STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

The Company has always valued its investors and stakeholders. In order to ensure the proper 

and speedy redressal of shareholders'/ investors' complaints, the Stakeholders' Relationship 

Committee was constituted. The role of the Committee is to consider and resolve securities 

holders' complaint and to approve / ratify transfer of securities. The constitution and terms of 

reference of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is in conformity with the provisions of 

Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

As on March 31, 2023, the Composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committees as 

follows: 

 

Name Designation Non-Executive/ Independent 

Mr Vaidhyanathan Ramamurthy 

(DIN: 02318827) 

Chairman Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

Mrs Jacinta Bazil Nayagam  

(DIN: 07557797) 

Member Non-Executive Independent 

(Woman) Director 
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The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee met 2 (Two) times during the financial year 2022-

23, The details of number of Committee Meetings held during the year 2022-23 and attendance 

of Members of the Committee are given in table below: 

 

Date of Stakeholders' 

Relationship Committee 

Meeting 

Name of Director 

Mr Vaidhyanathan 

Ramamurthy 

Mrs Jacinta Bazil 

Nayagam 

04-07-2022 Yes Yes 

21-07-2022 Yes Yes 

 

14. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

The Board of Directors met Seven (7) times during the Financial Year 2022-2023. The 

intervening gap between any two meetings was not more than 120 days as prescribed by the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Date of Board 

Meeting 

Name of Director 

Dr Shailendra 

P Mittal 

Mr Ramamurthy 

Vaidhyanathan 
Mrs Jacinta 

Nayagam 

 

Mr Hemant 

Panchal 

26/04/2022 Yes Yes Yes Yes 

04/07/2022 Yes Yes Yes Yes 

21/07/2022 Yes Yes Yes Yes 

01/09/2022 Yes Yes Yes Yes 

28/10/2022 Yes Yes Yes Yes 

29/11/2022 Yes Yes Yes Yes 

08/02/2023 Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 

Further, as required under Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the meeting of the 

Independent Directors of the Company was held on 8th February 2023 and all the Independent 

Directors of the Company were present at the meeting. 

 

15. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 

WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 
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The Company has Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Work Place and also 

constituted Internal Complaint Committee to investigate any complaint received on sexual 

harassment. 

 

The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints 

Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 

The Company has not received any complaints pertaining to sexual harassment during the 

financial year 2022-23. 

 

16. DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND 

EMPLOYEES: 

The Vigil Mechanism of the Company provides Directors and Employees to report their 

concerns and has also taken steps to safeguard any person using this mechanism from 

victimization and in appropriate and exceptional cases, there is direct access to approach 

Chairperson of the Audit Committee. The Board of Directors affirms and confirms that no 

personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. Protected disclosures can be made 

by a whistle blower through an e-mail, or dedicated telephone line or a letter to the Chairperson 

of the Audit Committee. 

The Policy on vigil mechanism may be accessed on the Company's website at the link: 

http://www.tradewings.in/codes_policies.htm 

 

17. PARTICULARS OF GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186: 

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided are 

disclosed in the standalone financial Statements which forms part of this report. 

 

18. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 

PARTIES: 

The Company, during the year, has entered into transactions, as specified under section 188(1) 

of the Companies Act, 2013, with related parties which are in Ordinary Course of business and 

are on arms' length basis. Further, the said transactions are not material in nature. Accordingly, 

the disclosure of Related Party Transactions to be provided under section 134(3)(h) of the 
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Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in Form 

AOC - 2 is not applicable. 

 

The related party transactions/ disclosures are provided in the Standalone Financial Statements 

which forms part of this report. 

 

19. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER 

THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016:  

 

Your Company has not filed any application under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

Also, no proceeding is pending under the said Code during the financial year 2022-23. 

 

20. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

 

As stipulated under section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

your Directors hereby state and confirm that: 

 

a) In preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the 

applicable Accounting Standards have been followed and there are no material departures from 

the same; 

 

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 

of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit and loss of the 

Company for the year ended on that date; 

 

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 

irregularities; 

 

d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a 'going concern' basis; 
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e) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 

that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively during the 

financial year ended March 31, 2023; and 

f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws, compliance of applicable secretarial standards and that such systems were 

adequate and operating effectively during the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and 

maintained by the Company, the work performed by the Internal, Statutory and Secretarial 

Auditors and external consultants, including the audit of internal financial controls over 

financial reporting by the Statutory Auditors, and the reviews performed by the Management 

and the relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion 

that the Company's internal financial controls were adequate and effective during the year 

under review. 

21. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

 

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India on Board Meetings and General Meetings. 

22. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION: 

The information required to be disclosed with respect to the remuneration of Directors and 

KMP's in the Directors' Report pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 

Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014, is set out as an ANNEXURE - 5 to this Report. 

 

The names of top ten employees of the Company in terms of remuneration drawn as required, 

pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is set out as an 

ANNEXURE - 6 to this Report. However, there was no employee in the Company drawing 

remuneration in excess of limit specified in Rule 5(2)(i) to (iii) of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 hence, no such details are provided. 

 

The Managing Director of the Company does not receive any remuneration or commission 

from Holding Company or any of its Subsidiaries. 
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23. RISK MANAGEMENT: 

 

The Company's robust risk management framework identifies and evaluates all the risks that 

the organization faces such as strategic, financial, credit, market, liquidity, security, property, 

legal, regulatory, reputational and other risks. Risk Management Policy adopted by the 

Company involves identification and prioritization of risk events, categorization of risks into 

High, Medium and Low based on the business impact and likelihood of occurrence of risks and 

Risk Mitigation & Control. 

 

The Company recognizes that these risks need to be managed and mitigated to protect its 

shareholders and other stakeholders, to achieve its business objectives and enable sustainable 

growth. The risk framework is aimed at effectively mitigating the Company's various business 

and operational risks, through strategic actions. Risk management is integral part of our critical 

business activities, functions and processes. The risks are reviewed for the change in the nature 

and extent of the major risks identified since the last assessment. It also provides control 

measures for risks and future action plans. 

 

The Audit Committee reviews adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's internal control 

environment and monitors the implementation of audit recommendations, including those 

relating to strengthening of the Company's Risk Management policies, systems and procedures. 

 

The Company believes that the overall risk exposure of present and future risks remains within 

risk capacity. 

 

24. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

 

It is the Company's continuous endeavour to discharge its liability as a corporate citizen of 

India. As the Company does not fulfil the criteria specified under Section 135(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, it has not constituted CSR Committee or formulated CSR Policy or 

made expenditure towards CSR activities during the reporting period. Further, the Company 

was also not required to mention in the Board's Report details as required under section 135 of 
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the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder hence, no such details are given in 

this Report. 

 

25. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS: 

 

As required under Regulation 34(2) read with Schedule V(B) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and 

Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, report on "Management Discussion and 

Analysis" is attached as ANNEXURE – 6 and forms a part of this Report. 

 

26. OTHER DISCLOSURES/ REPORTING: 

 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following 

items as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review: 

 

a) Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act. 

 

b) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 

 

c) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any 

scheme. 

 

d) Details of payment of remuneration or commission to Managing Director or Joint 

Managing Director of the Company from any of its subsidiaries as no such payment were made. 

 

e) Voting rights which were not directly exercised by the employees in respect of shares 

for the subscription/ purchase of which loan was given by the Company (as there is no scheme 

pursuant to which such persons can beneficially hold shares as envisaged under section 67(3)(c) 

of the Companies Act, 2013). 

 

f) There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 

Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which 

the financial statements relate and the date of the report. 
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g) No significant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in future. 

h) T he Central Government has nut prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub­
section ( l) of section L48 of the Companies Act, 2013, for any of the services rendered by the 
Company. 

27. APPRECIATION: 

The Directors express their appreciation to all employees of the various divisions fo r their 
diligence and contribution to performance. The Directors aJso record their appreciation for the 
support and co-operation received from franchisees, dealers, agents, suppliers, bankers and all 
other stakeholders. Last but not the least, the Directors wish to thank aJI shareholders for their 
conti nued support. 

for a nd on behalf of Board of Directors of 

Trade Wings Limited 

Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal 

Chairman & Managing Director 

DTN: 0022 166 1 

Address: 62-A, Mirta! Bhavan, 

Pedder Road, Mwnbai - 400026 

Date: 06\h August, 2023 

Place: Mumbai 
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ANNEXURE-l 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

[Under section 178 read with Section 134 of Companies Act, 2013] 

 

PREAMBLE 

Pursuant to Section 178, read with Section 134 the Board of Directors of the Companies Act, 

2013, every Listed Company shall constitute the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

The Company had already constituted Nomination Remuneration Committee comprising of 

three Non-executive Directors. 

 

The members of the Remuneration Committee continue to be the members of the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee. 

 

This Committee and the policy are formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

OBJECTIVE 

The Key objectives of the Committee would be: 

 

1)  To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. 

 

2) To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report 

to the Board for further evaluation. 

 

3)  To recommend to the Board on remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel and Senior Management. 

 

4) To identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed 

in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the 

board of directors their appointment and removal. 
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5) To decide whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent 

director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors. 

 

6) To recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior 

management. 

 

DEFINITIONS 

1) "Board" means Board of Directors of the Company. 

 

2) "Company" means "Trade-Wings Limited". 

 

3)  "Employees' Stock Option" means the option given to the directors, officers or 

employees of a Company or of its Holding Company or Subsidiary Company or 

Companies, if any, which gives such Directors, officers or employees, the benefit or 

right to purchase, or to subscribe for, the shares of the Company at a future date at a 

pre-determined price. 

 

4)  "Independent Director" means a director referred to in Section 149(6) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

5) "Key Managerial Personnel" (KMP) means 

a. Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager, 

b. Company Secretary, 

c. Whole-Time Director, 

d. Chief Financial Officer and 

e. Such other officer as may be prescribed. 

 

6) "Nomination and Remuneration Committee" shall mean a Committee of the Board 

of Directors of the Company, constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 

178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement. 

 

7) "Policy" means "Nomination and Remuneration Policy". 
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8) "Remuneration" means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for 

services rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-Tax Act, 

1961. 

 

9) "Senior Management" means personnel of the Company who are members of its core 

management team excluding Board of Directors. This would include all members of 

management one level below the executive directors, including all the functional heads. 

 

INTERPRETATION 

Terms that have not been defined in this Policy shall have the same meaning assigned to them 

in the Companies Act, 2013, Listing Agreement and/or any other SEBI Regulations as amended 

from time to time. 

 

GUIDING PRINCIPLES 

This policy ensures that 

1) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain 

and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully. 

2) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate 

performance benchmarks and 

3) Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management 

involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short- and long-term 

performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. 

 

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE 

The role of the Committee inter-alia will be the following: 

1) To formulate a criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a director. 

2) Formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board. 

3) Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in 

Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy. 

4) To carry out evaluation of every Director's Performance. 

5) To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior 

Management. 
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6) To recommend to the Board policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. 

7) Ensure that level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient, 

relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 

benchmarks. 

8) To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or 

enforced by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be 

applicable. 

9) To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance 

of its duties. 

10) To decide whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent 

director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors. 

11) To recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior 

management. 

 

MEMBERSHIP 

1)  The Committee shall comprise of at least three (3) Directors, all of whom shall be non-

executive Directors and at least half shall be Independent. 

2) The Board shall reconstitute the Committee as and when required to comply with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable statutory requirement. 

3) Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting. 

4) Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report. 

5) Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors. 

 

CHAIRPERSON 

1) The Chairperson of the Committee shall be an Independent Director, 

2) Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall 

not chair the Committee. 

3) In the absence of the Chairperson, the members of the Committee present at the meeting 

shall choose one amongst them to act as Chairperson. 

4) Chairperson of the Committee could be present at the Annual General Meeting or may 

nominate some other member to answer the shareholders' queries. 

 



ANNEXURE-l 

NOMINATION ANDREMUNERATION POLICY 

TRADE WINGS LIMITED 

SEVENTY-THIRD ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

 
39 

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS 

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required. 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS' INTEREST 

1)  A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own 

remuneration is discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being 

evaluated. 

2)  The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present 

at the meetings of the Committee. 

 

VOTING 

1)  Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority 

of votes of Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be 

deemed a decision of the Committee. 

 

2) In the case of equality of votes, the Chairperson of the meeting will have a casting Vote. 

 

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR 

MANAGEMENT 

 

A. Appointment criteria and qualifications: 

1)  The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and 

experience of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management 

level and recommend to the Board his / her appointment. 

 

2) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the 

position he / she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide 

whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person are sufficient / 

satisfactory for the concerned position. 

 

3) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing 

Director / Whole-time Director / Manager who has attained the age of Seventy years. 

Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the 
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age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution 

based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating 

the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years. 

 

B. Term / Tenure: 

1) The Managing Director / Whole-time Director / Manager (Managerial Person): The 

Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managerial Person for a term not 

exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year 

before the expiry of term. 

 

2) Independent Director: 

i. An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the 

Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special 

resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's Report. 

 

ii. No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but 

such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years 

of ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director 

shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the 

Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly. However, if a person who 

has already served as an Independent Director for 5 years or more in the Company as 

on 1st October, 2015 or such other date as may be determined by the Committee as per 

regulatory requirement, he / she shall be eligible for appointment for one more term of 

5 years only. 

 

iii. At the time of appointment of Independent Director, it should be ensured that number 

of Boards on which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed 

companies as an Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent 

Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed Company. 

Co Evaluation: The Committee may carry out evaluation of performance of every 

Director, KMP and Senior Management at regular interval (yearly). 

 

  



ANNEXURE-l 

NOMINATION ANDREMUNERATION POLICY 

TRADE WINGS LIMITED 

SEVENTY-THIRD ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

 
41 

C. Removal: 

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act 2013, rules made 

thereunder or any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend, 

to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior 

Management subject to the provisions and compliance of the Act, rules and regulations. 

 

D. Retirement: 

The Director, KMP and Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the 

discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management in the same position / remuneration 

or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company. 

 

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSON, 

KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

 

A. General: 

1) The remuneration / compensation /commission etc. to Managerial Person, KMP and 

Senior Management Personnel will be determined by the Committee and recommended 

to the Board for approval. The remuneration / compensation/ commission etc. shall be 

subject to the prior / post approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central 

Government, whenever required. 

2) The remuneration and commission to be paid to managerial person shall be as per the 

statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the 

time being in force. 

3) Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure may be recommended 

by the Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by the 

shareholders in the case of Managerial Person. Increments will be effective from the 

date of re-appointment in respect of Managerial person and 1stApril in respect of other 

employees of the Company. 
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B. Remuneration to Managerial Person, KMP and Senior Management: 

1) Fixed Pay: 

Managerial Person, KMP and Senior Management shall be eligible for a monthly 

remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the 

Committee in accordance with the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the rules made thereunder for the time being in force. The break-up of the pay scale and 

quantum of the perquisites including, employer's contribution to P. F., pension scheme, 

medical expenses, club fees, etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board on the 

recommendation of the Committee and approved by the shareholders and Central 

Government, wherever required. 

 

2) Minimum Remuneration: 

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the 

Company shall pay remuneration to its Managerial Person in accordance with the 

provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not able to comply 

with such provisions, with the prior approval of the Central Government. 

 

3) Provisions for excess remuneration: 

If any managerial person draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of 

remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Companies 

Act, 2013 or without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where required, he 

/ she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in 

trust for the Company. The Company shall not waiver recovery of such sum refundable 

to it unless permitted by the Central Government. 

 

C. Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Director: 

1) Remuneration / Commission: 

The remuneration / commission shall be in accordance with the statutory provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force. 

 

2) Sitting Fees: 

The Non - Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees 

for attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such 
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fees shall not exceed the maximum amount as provided ln the Companies Act, 20 13, 

p er meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the 

Central Government from time to t ime. 

3) Limit of Remuneration I Commission: 

Remuneration/Commission may be paid within the monetary .limit approved by the 

shareholders, subject to the limit nnt exceeding l% of the net profits of the Company 

computed as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

4) Stock Options: 

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company. 

MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETlNG: 

Proceedings of all meetings must be minutes and signed by the Chairperson of the said meeting 

or the Chairperson of the next succeeding meeting. Minutes of the Committee meeting wi ll be 

tabled at the subsequent Board and Committee meeting. 

DEVIATIONS FROM THIS POLICY: 

Deviations on elemenLs of this policy in exlraordinary circumstances, when deemed necessary 

in the interests of the Company, will be made if there are specific reasons to do so in an 

individual case. 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 

For Trade Wings Limited 

~ 
Dr. Shaileodra P. Mittal 

Chainnan & Managing Director 

DIN :00221661 

Date: 06th August, 2023 

Place: Mumbai 
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ANNEXURE-2 

Form AOC -1 

[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or 

associate companies or joint ventures 

Part "A": Subsidiaries 

(Information in respect of each subsidiary is presented with amounts in Rupees) 

Sr No Name of the subsidiary Trade Wings 

Hotel Limited 

1.  The date since when subsidiary was acquired March 30, 1993 

2.  Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different 

from the Holding Company's reporting period 

Same as Trade 

Wings Limited 

3.  Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date 

of the relevant Financial year in the case of Foreign 

Subsidiaries 

Not Applicable 

4.  Share capital 9900200 

5.  Reserves & surplus (184909246) 

6.  Total assets 244828176 

7.  Total Liabilities 244828176 

8.  Investments 650100 

9.  Turnover 340710076 

10.  Profit/Loss before taxation 27513425 

11.  Provision for taxation (4535085) 

12.  Profit/loss after taxation 32048510 

13.  Proposed Dividend NIL 

14.  Extent of Shareholding 100% 

 

Notes: 

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Not Applicable 

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Not Applicable 

 



Part "B": Associates 11od J oint Ventures 

Statement pursuant to Sc..:tlon 129 (3) or the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associote 

Companies and ,Joint Ventures 

Not applicable as the Company did not have any Associate Company <>r Joint Ventur1: durin~ 

the reporting period 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 

For Trade Wings Limited 

Dr.Sh~;tt.I 
Chairman & Managing Director 

DlN:00221661 

Date: 061h August, 2023 

Place: Mumbai 

Vishwan11tban N11ir 

CFO 

PAN: AEXPN2757E 
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Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023 

GHV & Co. 
Practising Company Secretaries 

Prudent Professionals. Practica l Solutions. 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule no.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

Trade Wings Limited ("the Company") 

01st Floor, Naik Buldg, Opp.Don Bosco High School, 

M.G.Road, Panaji North Goa GA 403001 IN 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Trade Wings Limited 
(hereinafter called 'the Company'). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, 
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 
(hereinafter called 'Audit Period'), complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance 
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 
according to the provisions of: 

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

215, 2nd Floor, Shreeji Chamber, Tata Road No. 2, Opera House, Mumbai -400004 

022- 4011 54341 9322241040 I 99871731141 9987495434 

Partner@~hvandco.com 
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Prudent Professionals. Practical Solutions. 

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act):-

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015; 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011. 

Based on the representation made by the Company and its officers, the Company has 
proper system and process in place for compliance under the following major other 
applicable laws, acts, rules, regulations and guidelines: 

IATA Guidelines for Agents; and, 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issue by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii) Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange. 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the 
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc mentioned above except: 

1. Pursuant to section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance 
of deposit) Rule, 1975 the company has deposits and exempt deposits as per the 
Financials Statement for the Financial Year 2022-23 as on date 31st March, 2023. The 
company has not filed e-form DPT-3 with MCA pertaining to deposits for the financial 
year 2022-23. 

215, 2nd Floor, Shreeji Chamber, Tata Road No. 2, Opera House, Mumbai -400004 

022- 4011 54341 9322241040 I 99871731141 9987495434 

Partner@~hvandco.com 
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Practising Company Secretaries 

Prudent Professionals. Practica l Solutions. 

2. Certain provisions of Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 as applicable are not complied 
with by the Company in convening the Board meetings and maintenance of Statutory 
registers. 

3. The annual audited financial results for quarter ended June, 2022 and September, 
2022 under regulation 33 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 has not been submitted within prescribed timelines to the Stock 
Exchange. 

4. The 71st Annual General Meeting of the Company for the Financial Year 2020-2021 
was held on 181h July, 2022 beyond the prescribed timelines provided under the 
provisions of the Section 96 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made 
thereunder. 

5. The Company has not yet paid reinstatement fees of INR 5,00,0000/- (plus GST@ 
18%) Payable after receipt of in principle approval for revocation and prior to approval 
for resumption of trading. The company has not paid such amount. 

6. The company was liable to pay a SOP fine of INR 27,55,000/- + applicable GST. No 
Proof for the same found. The company has not paid such amount. However, the 
company has requested for reduction in amount. 

7. Pursuant to 29(1) regulation of the SAST, Any acquirer who acquires shares or voting 
rights in a target company which taken together with shares or voting rights, if any, 
held by him and by persons acting in concert with him in such target company, 
aggregating to five per cent or more of the shares of such target company, shall disclose 
their aggregate shareholding and voting rights in such target company as per the format 
disclosures under Regulation 29(1) of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011. 

No disclosure found on BSE for the following: 

1. Benjo Holdings Pvt Ltd holding 6.26% 

2. Sagarknya Inv.& Finance Pvt Ltd holding 6.15% 

215, 2nd Floor, Shreeji Chamber, Tata Road No. 2, Opera House, Mumbai -400004 
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3. Vishwadeep Invt.& Financial. Pvt Ltd. holding 6.06% 

8. A statement showing holding of securities and shareholding pattern for quarter 
ended March, 2022 and March 2023, under sub-regulation (1) of regulation 31 SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 was submitted 
beyond prescribed timelines to the Stock Exchange. 

We further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes 
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice was given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
notes to agenda were sent in accordance with the applicable provisions. A system exists 
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

During the period, all the decisions in the Board Meetings were carried out 
unanimously. 

Further, the provision of regulation 19A of Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957, 
public shareholding of the Company may be required to be evaluated considering the 
fact that in the public shareholdings of the Company certain body Corporates and 
individual holding shares may be part of promoter family. Though the exact 
relationship with promoters is not ascertained nor it has been confirmed that these 
shareholder(s) fall under definition of promoters group, the same needs to evaluated 
and accordingly the management has informed that the same will be reviewed in light 
of the aforesaid regulation and proper legal opinion will be taken for deciding the way 
forward for the same. 

215, 2nd Floor, Shreeji Chamber, Tata Road No. 2, Opera House, Mumbai -400004 
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We further report that based on verification as stated above and representation received 
from the Company, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that, we have replied on reports given by statutory auditors for 
compliance with other laws like Income Tax, Customs, and GST matter of the company. 

We further report that, during the audit period there are no specific events that has a 
major bearing on the company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, 
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 31/07/2023 

Gopika S. Shah - Partner 
GHV & Co. -Practising Company 
Secretaries 
FCS No.: 10416 
C. P. No.: 11663 
UDIN: F010416E000708388 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed as 
'Annexure-A' and forms an integral part of this report. 
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'Annexure A' 

To, 

The Members, 

Trade Wings Limited 

GHV & Co. 
Practising Company Secretaries 

Prudent Professionals. Practical Solutions. 

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 of even 
date is to be read along with this letter: 

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 
on our audit. 

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 
The verification was done on reasonable basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected 
in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices followed by the 
Company, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 
of Accounts of the Company. 

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

215, 2nd Floor, Shreeji Chamber, Tata Road No. 2, Opera House, Mumbai -400004 
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The compliance of the prov1s10ns of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was 
limited to the verification of procedures to the extent possible. 

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 31/07/2023 

Gopika S. Shah - Partner 
GHV & Co. -Practising Company 
Secretaries 
FCS No.: 10416 
C. P. No.: 11663 
UDIN: F010416E000708388 

215, 2nd Floor, Shreeji Chamber, Tata Road No. 2, Opera House, Mumbai -400004 

022- 4011 54341 9322241040 I 99871731141 9987495434 
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ANNEXURE-4 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

[Pursuant to provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

 

A. ENERGY CONSERVATION: 

 

1. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: 

Your Company is in the service industry and not having any manufacturing activity. 

Your Company has always considered energy and natural resource conservation as a 

focus area and has been consciously making efforts towards its conservation. Even 

though the operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the Company on 

continuous basis takes measures for conservation of power.  

 

Your Company has taken several sustainable steps voluntarily to contribute towards 

better environment. Select few steps are listed below: 

 

a) Use of natural Lightning and natural ventilation 

b) Use of energy efficient electric equipment 

c) Educating employees and workers for energy conservation 

 

2. The steps taken by the Company for utilising Alternate Sources of Energy: 

The Company is using electricity as main source of its energy requirement and does not 

have any alternate source of energy. 

 

3. The capital investment on energy conservation equipment's: 

For the year under review, there was no investment in energy conservation equipment's. 

 

  



ANNEXURE-4 TRADE WINGS LIMITED 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION SEVENTY THIRD 
ANOFOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNCNGS ANDOUTGO A1'1WAL REPORT 2022-23 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

1. The efforts made towards technology absorption: 

The Company evaluates the best available technology for improving its performance 

and quality of its service operations. 

2. The benefits derived .like product improvement, cost reduction, product 

development or import substitution: 

The Company has not absorbed/made any new techno.logy during the year. 

3. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned 

from the beginning of the financial year): 

No technology was imported during the three years proceeding to the year under report 

4. Expenditure incurred on Research and Development: 

Nil 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

The total Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo in terms of actual inflow and out flow 

during the year was as follows: 

Particulars Financial year 2022-23 

Foreign Exchange inflow Nil 

Foreign Exchange outflow 2.Sl 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 

Trade Wings Limited 

~ 
Dr Shailendra P. Mittal 

Chairperson & Managing Director 
orN: 00221661 
Address: 62-A, Mlttal Bhavan, 
Pedder Road, Mumbai 400026 

Date: 06th August, 2023 
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Financial year 2021-

2022 

Nil 

3.43 

Place: Mwnbai 
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ANNEXURE-5 

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION 

A. DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER 

SECTION 197(12) READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT 

AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

 

i. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the 

employees of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 and the percentage increase 

in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, 

Company Secretary or Manager, if any during the Financial Year 2022-23 are as under: 

 

Sr 

No 

Name and Designation Remuneration 

(Rs in Lakhs) 

% Increase in 

Remuneration 

Ratio 

1. Dr Shailendra P. Mittal 

(Chairperson and Managing 

Director) 

Nil - - 

2. Mrs. Jacinta Nayagam 

(Independent Director) 

Nil - - 

3. Mr. R. Vaidyanathan  

(Independent Director) 

Nil - - 

4. Mr Hemant Ramdas Panchal 

(Non Executive Director) 

Nil - - 

5. Mr. Vishwanathan K. Nair (Chief 

Financial Officer) 

Rs. 4.98 - - 

6. Mrs. Zurica Kevin Pinto 

(Company Secretary) 

Rs. 2.44 - - 

 

*There was no salary given for the year 2020-2021 and 2021-2022 therefore the 

increase would be 100%. However, if the salary for the year 2019-2020 is considered, 

there is a decrease in salary. 

 

ii. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial 

Year: In the Financial Year 2022-23, there was an increase of 0% in the median 

remuneration of employees. 
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iii. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: There were 125 

(including KMP) permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 

2023. 

 

iv. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than 

the managerial personnel in the last Financial Year and its comparison with the 

percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof: 

 

Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the Financial Year 2022-23 was 0 % and increase in the 

remuneration of Directors or KMPs was 0 % during the Financial Year 2022-23. All 

increases were based on performance of employees and as per industry standards.  

 

v. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the 

company: It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Policy for 

Remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees. 

 

B. DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER 

SECTION 197(12) READ WITH RULE 5(2) OF COMPANIES 

(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) 

RULES, 2014. 

 

The details of top ten employees of the Company are given below: 

Sr No 1.  2.  

Name Mr. Ramnath 

Prakash 

Mr. Suresh T Shetty  

Designation  Branch Manager Branch Manager 

Remuneration paid (Rs in Lakhs)  Rs. 135690/- p.m. Rs. 52271/- p.m. 

Nature of employment Permanent Permanent 

Qualification and experience Diploma, more than 29 

years of experience 

B.com more than 17 

years of experience 

Date of Commencement of employment October 23, 1991 April 11, 2007 

Age 56 years 52 years 

Pervious Employment N.A N.A 

% of equity shares held in the Company 

along with his spouse and dependent 

children 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 
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Whether relative of Director or Manager No No 

 

Sr No 3.  4.  

Name Mr. Ajay Seth Mr. Valigno Dias 

Designation  Manager Branch Manager 

Remuneration paid (Rs in Lakhs)  Rs.58080/- p.m. Rs.63807 /- p.m. 

Nature of employment Permanent Permanent 

Qualification and experience Graduate, more than 

25 years of experience 

Post Graduate, more 

than 27 years of 

experience 

Date of Commencement of employment November 1, 1995 August 1, 1993 

Age 55 years 54 years 

Pervious Employment India Habitat Centre N.A 

% of equity shares held in the Company 

along with his spouse and dependent 

children 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

Whether relative of 

Director or Manager 

No No 

 

Sr No 5.  6.  

Name Mr. Rakesh Sharma Mr. Yogesh Kumar 

Singh 

Designation  Accounts Manager Branch Manager 

Remuneration paid (Rs in Lakhs)  Rs.53760/- p.m. Rs.44320/- p.m. 

Nature of employment Permanent Permanent 

Qualification and experience Graduate, more than 28 

years of experience 

B. Com, More than 20 

years of experience 

Date of Commencement of employment July 20, 1992 February 28, 2001 

Age 56 years 48 Years 

Pervious Employment Siddharth Travels Sita Travels 

% of equity shares held in the Company 

along with his spouse and dependent 

children 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

Whether relative of 

Director or Manager 

No No 
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Sr No 7.  8.  

Name Mr. Ajay Thaker Mr. Sunil S. Londhe 

Designation  Branch Manager Branch Manager 

Remuneration paid (Rs in Lakhs)  Rs. 41865/- p.m. Rs. 64726/- p.m. 

Nature of employment Permanent Permanent 

Qualification and experience Graduate. More than 

26 years of experience 

Graduate. More than 

26 years of experience 

Date of Commencement of employment 01st February 1997 16th April, 2007 

Age 58 Years 49 Years 

Pervious Employment N.A. N.A. 

% of equity shares held in the Company 

along with his spouse and dependent 

children 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

Whether relative of 

Director or Manager 

No No 

 

Sr No 9.  10.  

Name Mr. J Babu  Mr. S. Ganapathy 

Subramanian 

Designation  Branch Manager Branch Manager 

Remuneration paid (Rs in Lakhs)  Rs. 40536/- p.m. Rs. 49828/- p.m. 

Nature of employment Permanent Permanent 

Qualification and experience Graduate. More than 

18 years of experience 

Graduate. More than 28 

years of experience 

Date of Commencement of employment 01st August, 2005 01st May, 2007 

Age 76 Years 58 Years 

Pervious Employment N.A. N.A. 

% of equity shares held in the Company 

along with his spouse and dependent 

children 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

Whether relative of 

Director or Manager 

No No 
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Note: Particulars required to be maintained under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and rule 5(2) of companies (appointment and remuneration of managerial personnel) rules, 

2014 will be made available to any shareholder on a specific request made by him/ her in 

writing before the date of Seventy-Third (73rd) Annual General Meeting wherein financial 

statements for the financial year 2022-23 are proposed to be adopted by shareholders and 

such particulars shall be made available by the company within three days from the date of 

receipt of such request from shareholders. 

In case of request received even after the date of completion of Annual General Meeting, such 

particulars will be made available to lhe shareholders within seven days from the date of 

receipt of such request. The shareholders are requested to write to the Company Secretary 

and Compliances officer of the Company in this regard. Following are contact details: 

Ms Zurica Kevin Pinto 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

Email ID: companysecy@twltravel.com 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 

Trade Wings Limited 

~ 
Dr Shailendra P. Mittal 

Chainnan & Managing Director 

DIN: 00221661 

Address: 62-A, Mitt.al Bhavan, 

Pedder Road, Mumbai 400026. 

Date: 06th August 2023 

Place: Mumbai 
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ANNEXURE-6 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

1. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 

Overview: 

The Company is a Public Limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its 

Registered Office at Goa, India and Corporate office in Mumbai. In addition to this, the 

Company has branches in more than 34 cities in India. The Company has its equity listed on 

BSE Limited. The Company has been steadily expanding its customer base, infrastructure, and 

service lines by establishing new branches in different cities in India. The Company operates 

in tourism industry and also provides Cargo Services.  

 

The Indian tourism and hospitality industry have emerged as one of the key drivers of growth 

among the services sector in India. The second-largest sub-segment of the services sector 

comprising trade, repair services, hotels and restaurants. Tourism in India accounts for 9.2 per 

cent of the GDP and is one of the largest foreign exchange earners for the country. India ranks 

13th in the world in terms of foreign exchange earnings from tourism. The total contribution of 

travel and tourism to Indian GDP is forecasted to increase to US$ 492.21 billion by 2028. 

 

Tourism in India has significant potential considering the rich cultural and historical heritage, 

variety in ecology, terrains and places of natural beauty spread across the country. Tourism is 

also a potentially large employment generator besides being a significant source of foreign 

exchange for the country. 

 

Tourism and hospitality are included as one of the focus sectors under Government's 'Make in 

India' initiative. India's tourism industry has lauded the proposed Budget allocation for the 

financial year 2023-24 as INR 2400 crore allocated to the Ministry of Culture. The Government 

has also said that improvement of the tourism industry is directly related to growth and job 

creation. 

 

Trade Wings Limited: Poised for Growth 

 

Each of our business has its own unique and secular growth drivers and we enjoy a relatively 

good position within each business. 

 

The Company undertakes the business activities in the following areas: 

 

Travel and travel related services 

Cargo and Others 
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2. Opportunities and Threats: 

 

Opportunities: 

 

Recovery and growth of economy as well as significant technology changes are presenting 

several opportunities to the Company. Further, the Make in India initiative of Government of 

India has also increased tourism in India, in addition to Investment. Also, the Government has 

introduced process of tourist visa on arrival for citizens of certain countries which make travel 

easy. Trade Wings Limited sees opportunities of growth on the back of reviving global 

economies, political and social stability in the country. With the second largest population in 

the world, India also presents a large number of potential consumers. 

 

Threats: 

 

The global travel services industry is highly competitive with competition arising from 

Multinational Companies and few Indian Companies having sizable presence globally and also 

in the country. The stiff competition can lead to pressure on pricing, and hence can impact 

Company growth and profitability. 

 

The Company being in service industry, it is associated with supply side risks on availability 

of talented pool of people and experts. Also attracting talented people and attrition remains a 

risk. 

 

3. SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE: 

 

During the year under review, the Company was operating in two segments viz. 

I. Cargo and Others 

2. Travel Related Services 

 

The segment-wise performance of the Company during the year is given below: 

 

Particulars Years ended March 31, 2023  

Total Segment Revenue  

Cargo and Others 1347.41 

Travel Related Services 17114.88 

Less: Inter Segment Revenue  

Cargo and Others 0 

Travel Related Services 0 

Revenue from External Customers  

Cargo and Others 1347.41 

Travel Related Services 17114.88 
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Segment Profit/Loss before Interest and Tax  

Cargo and Others 19.98 

Travel Related Services 276.59 

Total  

Less: Interest 276.83 

Less: Other un-allocable expenditure net of un-

allocable income 

0 

Total Profit before Tax 19.76 

 

4. OUTLOOK: 

 

The future of the travel services industry will largely be shaped by the economic, social and 

political environment between the countries. The friendly relation between the two counties 

will ultimately boost our business. 

 

The terrorist threats have hit the travel industry globally. Our company has also been affected 

by it. However, the governments all over the world are taking terrorist threats seriously and are 

making efforts to neutralize the threats. The way the governments around the world prevent 

the terrorist activities, will play a key role in our industry. The Company is well poised to grow 

in the coming years. 

 

5. RISKS AND CONCERNS: 

 

This report lists forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual 

results could differ materially from those anticipated in these statements as a result of certain 

factors. This section lists our, risks and concerns: 

 

• Our business will suffer if we fail to anticipate and provide new services and enhance 

existing services to keep pace with rapid changes in the businesses on which we focus. 

• In the event that the Government of India or the government of another country 

• changes its external affairs policies in a manner that is averse to us, our revenues may 

be affected, reducing our profitability, 

• The Tours and Travel industry is a cyclical industry and is sensitive to changes in the 

economy in general, A slowdown in global economy in general and any of our focused 

economies in particular can unfavourably impact our business, 

• Major Terrorist attack in the country 

• Any Natural calamities or riots, 

•  Changes in foreign currency rates, 

•  Negative changes in export 
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One of the concerns is the Goods and Service Tax ("GST"), The GST Council announced that 

non-AC restaurants will charge 12% GST on food, AC restaurants and those with liquor license 

18% per cent, and five star hotels will charge a GST of 28% to some extent which will make 

India uncompetitive as taxes in neighbouring countries like Republic Macedonia, Qatar, 

Kuwait, Bahrain range between 5% to 15%. 

 

6. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

 

The Company maintains adequate internal control system, which provides, amongst other 

things, reasonable assurance of recording the transactions of its operations in all material 

aspects and of providing protection against significant misuse or loss of Company's assets, 

 

The Company has an adequate system of internal controls implemented for achieving 

efficiency in operations, optimum utilization of resources with analysis of data to strengthen it 

to meet the changing requirements. 

 

The Board and the Audit Committee are responsible for maintaining the risk management 

framework and internal control processes and policies. The Board assesses and approves its 

overall risk appetite, monitors the risk exposure and sets the group-wide limits, which are 

periodically reviewed. The Company's management systems, organizational structures, 

processes, standards, code of conduct and behaviours together form a system of internal control 

that governs how it conducts its businesses and manages associated risks. 

 

The effectiveness of the internal control mechanism is reviewed by internal audit team and by 

the Statutory Auditors. The Audit Committee of the Board periodically reviews the functioning 

of the internal audit and the implementation of the recommended measures to improve the 

internal control mechanism. 

 

7. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO 

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:  

 

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 Change (%) 

Revenue from operations 1,79,59,25,745 72,07,44,121 149.176% 

 

 

Other income (2) 5,03,02,850 3,59,93,929 39.753% 

 

Sub-total (1+2) 1,84,62,28,594 75,67,38,050 143.971% 

 

Total Expenditure 1,84,42,54,794 

 

77,36,59,232 138.380% 
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Profit/(Loss) before Tax 19,73,802 

 

(1,69,21,182) (88.335%) 

 

Profit/(Loss) after Tax 12,77,410 

 

(1,71,55,251) (92.55) 

 

 

The revenues from operations of the Company have increased by 149.176% as compared to 

the previous financial year. The expenses have been increased by 138.380% .The Other Income 

of the Company has increased by 39.753%. During the current financial year the Company has 

recorded Profit before tax of INR 19,73, 802/- as compared to the loss before tax of 

(1,69,21,182) in the previous year. The Company is expected to earn more profits in the coming 

years. 

 

8. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES/ INDUSTRIAL 

RELATIONS FRONT: 

 

In any service enterprise, employees form the core of an organization. We recognize the vitality 

of this stakeholder. A significant portion of our management focus is invested in engaging with 

our employees and improvement of services to the client's satisfaction. 

 

During the year the Company has not reported any Management-Employee conflict. 

 

The Company is committed to create an appropriate climate, opportunities and systems to 

facilitate identification, development and utilization of employees' full potential on a 

continuous basis. 

 

Number of employees: There were 125 employees (including KMP) on the pay roll of the 

Company as on March 31, 2023. 

 

9. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES (I.E. CHANGE OF 25% OR MORE 

AS COMPARED TO THE IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR) 

IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS, ALONG WITH DETAILED EXPLANATIONS 

THEREFOR: 

 

Sr 

No 

Particulars % / Amount  % Increase 

/ Decrease 

Explanation for 

change 2022-2023 2021-2022 

i.  Debtors 

Turnover (Rs) 
1908.86 1834.51 4.05% 

As the company has 

come a long way on its 

journey from the 

recovery of the 

devasting after effects 

caused by COVID-19, 

ii.  Inventory 

Turnover (Rs) 
84.41 26.75 215.55% 

iii.  Interest Coverage 

 Ratio (%) 
1.07 0.28 282.14% 
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iv. Current Ratio(%) 2.38 2.08 14.42% there has been a 

v. Debt equity Ratio positive increase in the 
5.72 5.72 0 

financials of the 

Vl. Operating Profit company. 

Margin (Rs) 
19.76 -169.22 111.68% 

V11. Net Profit Margin 

(Rs) 
4.05 -173.39 102.34% 

10. DETAILS OF ANY CHANGE IN RETURN ON NET WORTH AS 
COMPARED TO TIIE IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR 
ALONG WITH A DETAJLED EXPLANATION THEREOF: 

Sr Particulars % 0/e Increase Explanation for change 

No I Decrease 

2022-23 2021-22 

I . Return on There has been a positive 

Net Worth 
133.85 129.8 

increase in the financials of the 

(Rs.) 
3.12% 

company post the effects caused 

by COVTD-19 

Cautionary Statement: 
Certain statements made in the management discussion and analysis report relating to the 

Company's ohj ectives. projections, outlook, expectations, estimates and others may constitute 

'forward looking statements' within the meaning of applicable laws and regu lations, Actual 

results may differ from such expectations, projections and so on, whether express or impl ied. 

Several factors could make a significant difference lo the Company's operations. These include 

economic conditions affecting demand and supply, government regulations and taxat ion, 

natural calamities and su on over which the Company may or may not have any direct control. 

The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward­

looking stat.cmcnts, on the basis of any subsequent developments, info rmation or events. 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 
Trade Wings Limited 

~ 
Dr Shailcndr~ 
Chairman & Managing Dirt:ctor 

DIN: 00221661 
Address: 62-A. Mittal Bhavan, 

Pedder Road, Mumbai 400 026. 
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Date: 061h August, 2023 

Place: Mumbai 



To, 

Aalok Mehta & Co. 
Chartered Accountant 

48/B, Girdhari Bhavan, Office No. 9, 2nct Floor, Sadashiv X Lane, 
Girgaum, Mumbai - 400 004 

Tel No. 8850457209 

The Board of Directors 
Trade-wings Limited 

Report on audit of the Standalone Annual Financial Results 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone annual financial result of Trade-wings 
limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Company") for the year ended on 31st March, 2023 
attached herewith, being submitted by the Company pursuant to the requirements of 
Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended (Listing Regulations"). 

In our opinion and to the best of information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid standalone annual financial results: 

a . are presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the Listing 
Regulations in this regard; and 

b. give a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement 
principles laid down in the applicable Indian Accounting Standards, and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the net profit and other 
comprehensive income and other financial information for the year ended 31 
March 2023. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standard on Auditing ("SAs") specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013("the Act"). Our responsibilities under 
those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Standalone Annual Financial Results section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company, in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act, and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained 
by us, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone 
annual financial results. 

Emphasis of Matter(s) 

a. We draw attention to Note No.6 to standalone audited results which state that no 
impairment of cost of investment in the wholly owned subsidiary Trade-wings 
Hotel limited, has been provided in the statements for the reasons stated in the 
note. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this •ma,er. 



Management's and Board of Director's Responsibilities for the Standalone Annual 
Financial Results 

These standalone annual financial results have been prepared on the basis of the 
standalone annual financial statements. 

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the 
preparation and presentation of these standalone annual financial results that give a 
true and fair view of the net loss and other comprehensive income and other financial 
information in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down 
in Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of Act, and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 
of the Listing Regulations. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting polies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting record, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone annual financial results that give 
a true and fair view and are free form material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the standalone annual financial results, the Management and the Board of 
Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as going 
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Annual Financial Results 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone annual 
financial results as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone annual 
financial result, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks , and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one re ·ng from error, as fraud may involve 



collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section l 43(3)(i) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
through a separate report on the complete set of financial statements on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 
related disclosures in the standalone financial results or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone annual 
financial results, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial 
results represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 



/ 
Other Matter(s) 

a) We have not audited the annual financial statement of Cargo division include in 
the financial statement of the company, whose financial statement reflects total 
assets of Rs.122.23 Lakhs and total revenues of Rs.1347.41 lakhs for the year 
ended on that date, as considered in the annual financial results. The annual 
financial results of this division have been audited by other auditors. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matter with respect to our reliance 
on the work done and the reports of the other auditor. 

b) The standalone annual financial results include the result for the quarter ended 
31st March 2023 being the balancing figure between the audited figures in respect 
of the full financial year and the published unaudited year to date figures up to 
the third quarter of the current financial year which were subject to limited review 
by us. 

For M/s. Aalok Mehta & CO 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.: 126756W 

CA Aalok Mehta 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 114930 

un1N: 23, \''-'"\'..So G&e> T:z_R'"=f-0\ 11-
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29/05/2023 
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A-2 Kaveri CHS, Plot No. 63, 
Sector - 17, Vash i, 
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Phone : +91 (022) 6883 5801 
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Rrid. Office: IU floor. aik Buildinc. Opp. Don Bosco ltit,h School. Mah:um1 Gandhi Road, Panaji. Coa - .aoJ 001 

Tel.: 012-68835801, E-1111il: companysecy(altwllravel.com, Website: www.trRdcwings.in 

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILIT IES 

Sr .No. Particulars 

A ASSETS 

I Non-currenc assets 

(a) Propeny. Plant and Equipment 

(bl Capital work-in-progress 

(1) Deferred tax assets (n<t) 

(J) Current Tax Assets (net) 

(k) Non Current Investments 

(I) Other non-current assets 

Total Non-Curren t Asseu ( t) 

2 Current assets 

(a) lnvontories 

(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Current Investments 

(11) Trade rece1vabl<S 

(111) Cash and cash equ1valtnts 

(1v) Bank balances othtr than(111) abovt 

(v) Loans 

(v1) 01hcrs Current Financial Assc1s 

(d) Othtr current assets 

Total Current Assets (2) 

Total Assets (A• t + 2) 

D EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

J Equity 

(a) Equny Share capnal 

(b) Other Equity 

( c) Other Reserves 

Total Eaultv (J) 

4 Liabilities 
4(1) I Non-curront hab1hll<S 

(a) Financial L1ab1hues 

(i ) Borrowings 

(b) Provisions 

(c) Deferred tax liab1hues (Net) 

(d) Other non-<:urrtnt hab1hues 

Total Non...,urr<nt liabi lities (4(1)) 

4(11) Current liabilities 
(a) Financial L1abiliues 

(1) Borrowings 

(11) Trade payabl<S 

(111) Othtr financial hab1h11es (o ther than 1hose 

snocificd 1n item le\ 

(b) Other current hab1hues 

(c) Prov1s1ons 

Total Curr<nt liabilities (4(ii)l 

Total Equity and Liabilities (0 • J + 4(i) + 4(ii)) 

Date: 29th May 2023 
Place: Mu mbai 

As at 31-03-2023 
(A udited) 

423.11 

-
92.38 

105.57 
32.30 

653.36 

84.41 

1,908.86 
399.57 

7.12 
57.64 
50.96 

2,508.56 

3,161.91 

300.00 

-166.19 

133.81 

1,339.33 
58.00 

5.38 
57 1.52 

1,974.23 

377.35 
415.52 

120.96 

75 .19 
64.85 

1,053.87 

3,161.91 

CIN : L63040GA1949PLC000168 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

As at 31-0J..2022 
(Audi ted) 

446.35 

-
10999 
105.57 
25.25 

687. 16 

26.75 

-
1,834.5 1 

279.51 

-
7.59 

125.30 
613.5 1 

2,887.17 

3,574.32 

300.00 

-170.20 

129.80 

1,404.99 
59.39 
-1.59 

592 29 
2,055.08 

310.80 
543.95 

140 .88 

345.55 
48 27 

1,389.45 

3,574.32 

Registered Office : 1st Floor, Naik Building, Opp. Don Bosco High School, M. G. Road, Panajlm, Goa . 403 001 . India. 
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Phone : +91 (022) 6883 5801 
Email : companysecy@twltravel.com 
Website: www.tradewings.in 
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STATEMENT OF AUDITED STANDALONE FINANC IAL RESULTS FOR T H E QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 

( RJ:. in lakJu u:crpt Prr shu'f' valur ) 

Standalo ne 

Qua11rr Endt d Yurrndt-d 

Jl -03-2023 3 1-12-2022 J l.OJ.2022 Jl.03.2023 31·03-2022 
(Aud;1td ) ( Un- Aud;1od) (Audi1od) (Audited) (Audittd ) 

I Rtvrnut fronl optra1ions 

a Revenue from operauons 4,856 84 4869 79 2.11941 17.959 26 7,207 45 

b Othor Income 132 93 144 25 165 72 503 OJ 35994 

Toral Rnrnue (a+ b ) 4,989,77 5014.04 2,285. 13 18,462.29 7.M7.39 

2 Expenses 
a Cost ofT,.dod Goods 4,627 88 4585 97 2.0SJ 24 17,048 07 6,8JS 18 

b Changes 1n mvmtones of fini shed goods. work • m • 000 
000 000 000 

I nrnor1>es anrf. ll\l"k • 1n • 1rarl,. 

c Employee Benefits Expen.se 112 89 IS 1.76 .43 84 418.89 9S.32 

d finance costs 7632 7241 JJ 06 27683 234 21 

e Oeprec1a11on and Amon1sauon expense I SS 900 SOS 28.SS J2 OS 

f Other Expense 118 87 193 94 279 SI 670.19 539 86 

Tota l [ .spt:nJu (a +b+f+d +t:) 4,93 7.51 5013.08 2327.02 13,442.53 7,736.61 

Profit / (Loss) btfore Exctpt ional l t<m and Tu ( I • 2) 52.26 0.96 -41.89 19.76 · 169.22 

3 Tu esptnsts 

(1) Currtnt Tax 000 000 000 

(11) Deftrrod Tax 000 214 -696 2 14 

(111) Interest on Delayed TDS 000 019 0 19 

(iv) Earlier year Service Tax / Income Tax paid 000 000 000 000 0.00 

Tol:af Tu Expt:nfft 0.00 0.00 2.J3 -6.96 2.JJ 

Profil (Loss) for lht: period from con1inuin& Opt:rations 52.26 0.96 -41.22 12.80 -17 1.55 

4 Profit (Loss) from D1sconunued Ope111uons 000 000 000 000 000 

5 Tax expenses ofD1scon11nued Operations 000 000 000 000 000 

Proril/(loss) fro1n Discontinued optral ions (aOt r tu) 000 000 000 000 000 

Profo tl(loss) fo r tht ptrlod 52.26 0.96 -44.22 12.80 -171.55 

6 Olhtr Compre.htnsive lncomt:, ntl of lncomt Tu 

I (•) hems that will not be rtclasS1fied to profit or loss 000 000 000 000 000 

I (b) Income tax relating 10 11ems that will not be reclassified 000 000 000 000 000 

t"' Profit or L"'u 
(a) G<atu11y 000 ·I 84 ·8 7S ·1 84 

(b) Lea-. Encashmont 000 

Total othtr compre.hrnsivt Income. nt t or lncomt T•1 0.00 · 1.8-1 -8.75 · l .84 

Tot• I comprt.ht:nsivt lncomt:, ntl or Income Tu. 52.26 0.96 -46.06 4.05 · 173.39 

7 Paid-up <qulty share capital (face \"llue Rs 1 O/· per share) 30000 30000 30000 300.00 30000 

8 Othor Equ1tv 000 000 000 000 000 

9 EJ!mines p<r Sha rt (EPS) fro m con1inui111 and 
diJcontinued opt:rations (RJ.. 10/· u ch ) (not a nnualiud ) 

(a) Basic I 74 003 -1 47 0 43 .5 72 

(b) Diluted 1 74 003 ·I 47 0 43 ·S 72 

See accompanying note 10 the financial r~ults 

Notes: 
(I) The above financial results were reviewed by the Audit Comm111ee a1 us meeting held on 29th may 2023 & were thereaner approved by the Board of Directors at 11s 
metllng held on 291h May 2023 

(2) ThlS statoment hss been prepared 1n accordance wuh the Companios (Indian Accounung S1a11dards) Rulos. 2015 (Ind AS) prescnbed undor stellon 133 of Companies 
Act, 2013 and mher recognised accounung pracuces and policies 10 the extent applicable 

(3) The figures for the quaner ended J I March 2023 >r< balancing figurts betwetn aud1tod figures In respect of full financial year onded 31 March 2022 and the 
publ1Shed ycarto date fiaures upto the third quanor ended JI December 2022, "hich ha\O been r<sroupcdl rearranged whoro\or necessary 

(4) The Company has, pursuant to the prov1s1ons of Ind AS 108. tdent1ficd 11S business segmenu as its primary rcponable segments. which compnses of Travel Rel1ued 
Services and Cargo & Others 

(S) Assc1s & Laab1h11es 1s annexed hereto with these fi1Unc11l results 
(6) No Prov1s1on for 1mpa1nnent of m\iestments in its wholly ov.11ed subs1d1:uy ·Trade Wings Hotels Ltd has ~n made in 1hc Financial Results, as 1he management 1s 
cxpecung 1hc pos111ve trends in the result of the subsidiary on going concern basis 

(7) The figuros for the year onded 31 March. 2023 have betn audited by the Statutory Auditors of the Company The RePon of the Statutory Auditor IS unqualified 

(8) These F1nanc1al Results ha"e been prepared 1n accordance wuh Indian Accounting Standards (lnd·AS) prescribed undtt section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
w1lh the relevant rules 1hercundcr as amended from ume 10 umc and in terms of Rcguhmon 33 of the SEBI (L1snng Obhgauons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulauons. 2015 (L1s11ng Regula1ions) m accordance with lnd·AS 108, Operating Sei;mcnts, Segment mfom1a11on has been provided in the aud11cd Standalone and 
Consolida1ed financial results or the Company 

(9) Previous period figures ha"e betn re---grouped I re-cl~ss1fied wherever necessary. to confirm to this pcnod's clus1ficaum:on 

For Tr d t -\ n Limited 

Dr.Shailondra P.-A~al 

Date: 29th May 2023 DI : 0221~ 
Plact: Mumba i C ha irma n a nd M anaging Dir 

CIN : L63040GA1949PLC000168 

Registered Office : 1st Floor, Naik Building, Opp. Don Bosco High School, M. G. Road, Panajim, Goa - 403 001 . India. 



< 
~ .• 

a.:_. t LIMITED 
TRADE WINGS LTD 
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Profit after exceptional items and tax 
Adjustment for : 
Depreciation and amortization expenses 
Sundry Dr. blance W/off 
Deferred Tax Liability 
Provision for Tax 
Loss/(profit) from partnership fim1 
Unrealised Exchange difference 
Finance Cost 
Other Tax Expense 
OCI Gra1uity 
OCI Leave Encashment 
Interest income 

Operating profit before working capital changes 
Adjustments for: 
(Increase) I Decrease in Trade and other receivables 
(Increase) I Decrease in inventories 
{Increase) I Decrease in short 1em1 loans and advances 
(Increase) I Decrease in Non Curren! investments 
(Increase) I Decrease in Other currenl assets 
(Increase) I Decrease in Ocher Non current assets 
(Increase) I Decrease in Other current Financial asse1s 
(Increase) I Decrease in long term loans and advances 
(Increase) I Decrease in borrowings 
{Increase) I Decrease in other non-current liabi lities 
(Increase) I Decrease in long term provisions 
(Increase) I Decrease in trade and other payables 
(Increase) I Decrease in other financial liabilities 
(Increase) I Decrease in other current liabilities 
(Increase) I Decrease in short 1em1 borrowings 
(Increase) I Decrease in Short term provisions 

Cash generated from operations 

Current Taxes 
Interest on Delayed TDS 
(Increase) I Decrease in Current Tax (TDS Net) 
Add: Reduction in Provision for Taxes 

A :NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Sale proceeds of property, plant and equipment 
Purchase proceeds of property, plane and equipment 

Income from inveslments 
Matured investments in FD 
Interest income 

INET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

TRADE WINGS 

2022-23 
Rupees in Lakhs 

28.SS 

.00 

.00 

- .33 

276.84 

.00 

- 8.7S 

- 91.SS 

- 74.32 

- S7.6S 

.47 

.00 

S62.SS 

- 7.0S 

67.66 

.00 

- 6S.67 

- 20.77 

-1.39 
- 128.43 

- 19.92 

- 270.36 

66.SS 

16.S8 

17.61 

.00 

.00 

- S.32 

.33 

91.SS 

19.74 

204.76 

224.50 

68.24 

292.74 

17 61 

310.35 

86.56 

86.56 

A-2 Kaveri CHS, Plot No. 63, 
Sector - 17, Vashi, 
Navi Mumbai - 400 705. INDIA 
Phone : +91 (022) 6883 5801 
Email : companysecy@twltravel.cor 
Website : www.tradewings.in 

TRADE WINGS 

2021-22 
Rupees in Lakhs 

32.0S 

-
-

(11.97) 

234.26 

-

(1.84) 

(91.07) 

(147.38) 

(8.62) 

214.17 

4.40 

(14.02) 

(1.07) 

883.46 

41.87 

(3.84) 

167.38 

(1,322.83) 

SS.SS 

310.80 

6.10 

-0.20 

(S2.96) 

(2.34) 

11.97 

91.07 

-169.21 

161.43 

-7.78 

18S.97 

178.19 

(S3.16) 

12S.03 

100.70 

100.70 



c CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Reduction in Revaluation Reserve 

Repayment of borrowings I Secured Loans 

Borrowings from Related parties 

Repayment of borrowings from related parties 

Unrealised exchange difference 

Interest and financial charges paid 

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

(i) NET CASH FLOWS DURING THE YEAR (A+B+C) 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents (opening balance) 

Cash and cash equivalents (Closing Balance balance) 

Total of (i) + (ii) 

Balance Sheet Amount Rs. 

\. 

- 276.84 - 276.84 {234.26} (234.26) 

- 276.84 (234.26) 

120.07 (8.53) 

279.50 288.04 

399.57 279.51 

399.57 279.51 

399.57 279.St 

For TRADE WINGS LTD. 

C hairman and Managing DirectoN::::::::::::::::=-" 

Place: M um bai 



TRADE WINGS LIMITED 
Standalone Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31st, 2023. 

l Company Overview and significant Accounting Policies 

Company Overview 

The Company is a Public Limited Company listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The 
company is engaged in the businesses of travel and travel related services, working as travel agent and 
tour operator, Cargo business and enganged in Foreign Exchange business. 

2 Basis of preparation of financial statements 
(i) Compliance with Ind-AS 
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) on 
accrual basis under the historical cost convention and the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 ("the 
Act). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2016. 

The Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards. 
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is 
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting 
policy hitherto in use. 

Accounting pol icies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is 
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting 
policy hitherto in use. 

(ii) Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
I) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 
2) Assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fa ir value less cost to sell; 
3) Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; 

(iii) Current and Non-Current classification 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal 
operating cycle (Twelve Months) and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act. 

(iv) Rounding of amounts 

All amounts disclosed in the Financial Statements and Notes have been rounded off to the nearest lak.hs 
as per the requirement of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated. 

3 Use of estimates 

Preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that could affect the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets, liabili ties, revenues and expenses during the 
reported periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are 
reflected in financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects 
are disclosed in the notes to the financia l statements. 



4 Property, plant and equipment 

The Company has applied for the one time transition exemption of considering the carrying cost on the 
transition date i.e. April 1, 2016 as the deemed cost under IND AS. Hence, regarded thereafter as 
historical cost. 

Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less 
depreciation and impairment, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to 
the acquisition of the items 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component 
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

5 Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 
Depreciation is provided on Written Down Value Method over the estimated useful lives of assets. 
The Company depreciates its property, plant and equipment over the useful life in the manner prescribed 
in Schedule II to the Act, and management believe that useful life of assets are same as those prescribed 
in Schedule II to the Act. 

Useful Life 

Asset 
Useful Life adopted prescr ibed as per 

by Company Schedule II of 
Companies Act 

Building 60 years 60 years 
Plant & Machinery 15 years 15 years 
Vehicles 08 years 08 years 
Office Equipments 05 years 05 years 
Computer 03 years 3 years 

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its 
property, plant and equipment measured as per the previous GAAP and used that carrying value as the 
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment. 

6 Investments 

(i) Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 
Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are recognised at cost as per Ind AS 27. 

(ii) Investments and other financia l assets 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 
(a) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or 
through the Statement of Profit and Loss). 

(b) Those measured at amortised cost 



7 Financial instruments 

Initial recognition 

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognised at fair value 
on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. 

Subsequent measurement 

a. Non-derivative financial instruments 

Financial assets carried at amortised cost 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual tenns of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is 
held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling financial assets and the contractual tenns of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payment of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at fair value through statement of profit and loss 
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently adjusted for fair 
value through the statement of profit and loss. 

Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For 
trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts 
are recorded at transaction value. 

Derecognition of Financial Instruments 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the 
financial asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and the financial asset qualifies for 
derecognition under Ind AS I 09. A financial liability or part of financial liability is derecognised from 
the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation mentioned in the contract is discharged or cancelled 
or expires. 

b. Share capital 
Ordinary shares are classified as Equity. 

c. Fare Value and Risk Management 
Seperate table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and fi nancial liabilities, 
including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. 

d. Financial Risk Management 
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:. Separate sheet of 

details attached herewith 
(i) Credit risk ; 
(ii) Liquidity risk ; 
(iii) Market risk; and 
(iv) Interest Rate Risk 



7 ( a) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the consideration paid for services. 
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount 
that refl ects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those 
services. Revenue from rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes and discounts. 

(a) Income from operations 

The Company earns revenue from travel and related services and financial services 

(i) Financial services 
It comprise of income arising from the buying and selling of foreign currencies 
on the net margins earned, commissions on sale of foreign currency 
denominated prepaid cards, incentives earned in relation to these cards. 
Revenue from financial serv ices are recognized by reference to the time of 
services rendered. 

(ii) Travel and related services 
It comprises of leisure tours packages within India and outside India along with 
travel related services viz travel insurance and visa services. Revenue on leisure 
tours I holiday's packages are recognized on the completion of the performance 
obligation which is on the date of departure of the tour. It also includes income 
from the sale of ai rline tickets which is recognized as an agent on the basis of 
net commission earned, at the time of issuance of tickets, as the Company does 
not assume any performance obligation post the confirmation of the issuance of 
an airline ticket to the customer. Performance linked bonuses from airlines are 
recognized as and when the performance ob ligations under the schemes are 
achieved. 

(iii) Rental Income 
Income from other sources is mainly comprised of Rental income which is 
accounted on accrual basis. 

(iv) Income from cargo 
Revenue is recognized only when risks and rewards incidental to ownership are 
transferred to the customer; it can reliably measure to expect ultimate co llection, 
Revenue from operations includes co llection on account of freight, services, 
adj usted for discount ( net ) . 



8 Impairment 

a. Non-financial assets 
Intangible assets and property, plant a nd equipment 

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose 
of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e., the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the 
value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows 
that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is 
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. 

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss is measured at the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated 
recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if 
there has been a change in the estimate used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount 
of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net off any accumulated amortisation or 
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. 

b. Financial Assets: 

The Company recognises loss a llowance for Financial Assets which are not adjusted for Fair Value 
through the Statement of Profit and Loss The amount of expected credit loss (or reversal) that requires 
an adjustment is treated as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. 

9 Provisions and contingencies 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be reasonably estimated, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will 
be require to settle the obligation. 

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but 
their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be 
measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot 
be made 

Guarantee in form of Negative lien on ownership property given/agreed to be given by the Company in 
favour of: 

Guarantees in favour of 
Financial Assistance 

Limit Sanctioned Amount outstanding As at 
availed by 

31 /03/2023 31/03/2022 
Rupees in Lakhs 

(a) 
Bank Of Baroda 

Trade Wings Logistics 
60.00 59.22 25.46 

(India) Pvt. Ltd 
(b) 

National Co-op. Bank (I 171) 
Trade Wings Hotels 

526.00 652.17 548.47 
Ltd 

(c) Guarantees given for bank towards Corporate Cards 38.00 35.00 35.00 



10 Foreign Cur rency 

Functional currency 
The functional currency of the Company is the Indian Rupee. These financial settlements are presented 
in Indian Rupees. 

Transactions 

Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the functional currency 
at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. The gains or losses resulting from such translation 
are included in net profit in the statement of profit and loss. 

Transaction gains or losses realised upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are included in 
determining net profit for the period in which the transaction in settled. Revenue, expense and cash 
flow items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the relevant functional currencies using 
the exchange rate in effect on the date of the transaction. 

11 Employee benefits 

a) Short term 

Short term benefits include salaries and performance incentives. The undiscounted amount of short­
term employee's benefits expected to be paid in exchange of service rendered by the employees are 
recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the year when the employees render 
the service to the company. 

b) Long term 

The company has defined contribution and defined benefits plan. The plans are financed by the 
company and in case of some defined contribution plans by company along with employees. 

• Defined contribution plans 
The company's contribution to provident fund and fam ily pension fund made to regular authorities and 
where company has no further obligation are considered as define contribution plans and are charged as 
expenses in the statement of profit and loss as they fall due based on amount of contribution required to 
be made. 

• Defined benefit plans 

Expenses for defined benefits gratuity are calculated as at the balance sheet date by independent 
actuaries (using the projected unit credit method) in a manner that distributes expenses over the 
employees working life .These commitment are valued at the present value of the expected future 
payment with consideration for calculated future salary increase , using discount rate corresponding to 
the interest rate estimated by the actuary having regard to the interest rate on government bonds with 
remaining term that is almost equivalent to the average balance working period of employees. 
Actuarial gain/ losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise. 

c) Other employee benefits 

The Company has a scheme for compensated absences (Leave Encashment) for employees, the liability 
for which is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation, carried out at the Balance Sheet date. 



12 Leases 

The Company's significant leasing arrangements are in respect of leases for residential and office 
premises. The leasing arrangements, which are non-cancellable, are in the range of eleven months and 
usually renewable by mutual consent on agreed terms. The aggregate lease rentals payable is charged as 
rent including lease rentals. 

13 Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets 
are treated as direct cost and are capitalised as part of cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is an asset 
that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other 
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

14 Income Tax 

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable 
income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and 
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. 

Deferred income tax is provided in full , using the liability method on temporary differences arising 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statement. 
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially 
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are excepted to apply when the related deferred income 
tax assets is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, only 
if, it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and 
losses. 

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it 
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is 
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

15 Cash flow statement 

16 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash 
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. 
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated 



17 In the opinion of management of the Company, amount included under the heads loans and advances are 
good and realizable in the ord inary course of business. 

18 Income tax provision, including for Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT), has not been made in view of the 
carried forward business loss and tax depreciation. The Company has not recognised Deferred Tax 
Assets on unabsorbed depreciation and carried forward tax losses in the absence of virtual certainty of 
future taxable income against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. 

19 Related Party Disclosure: 

(a) List of Related Parties: 
I. Narayani Hospitality & Academic 
2. Trade Wings Hotels Ltd. 
3. Dr. S. P. Mittal 

Holding Company 
Subsidiary Company 
Key Management Person 

4. Narayani Associates 
5. R.J.Trade Wings Pvt. Ltd. 

Associates and Entities over which TWL is able to exercise significant influence. 
Entities where director is common 

(b) Transactions during the year with related parties are as under: 

Sr. 
No. 

Nature of Transactions 

Interest Paid 
Previous Year 

2 Interest Received 
(Previous Year) 

3 Share ofNarayani Associates 
(Previous Year 

4 Amount Received I Paid towards Loan 

Balance as on 
31st March, 2022 
(Previous Year) 

Amount Received 
during the year 
(Previous year) 

Amount Paid 
during the year 
{Previous year) 

Balance as on 
31st March, 2023 
(Previous Year) 

Holding Company 

Nil 
ii 

Nil 
(Nil 

Nil 
Ni l 

2 1.85 
0.00 

21.85 
9.88 

(NIL) 
0.00 

Associates over 
which TWL is 
able to exercise 

Subsidiery significant 
Company (Trade Key Management influence. And 

Wings Hotels 
LTD.) 

81.78 
86.09 

530.5 
760.38 

794.04 
396.73 

794.04 

166.85 

0.00 
530.5 

Personal 

66. 18 
49.85 

592.29 
550.42 

66.18 
49.85 

86.94 

7.98 

571.52 
592.29 

Entities where 
Director is 

having 
significant 
influence 

Nil 
ii) 

N il 
ii 

10.71 
9.57 

324.56 
109.59 

324.50 
73.56 

10.65 
10.71 

Partnership 
Firm 

1.66 
3.22 
0.33 
11.96 



20 

21 

22 

Segment Reporting 

For the year ended 
Description Mar-23 Mar-22 

Rupees in Lakhs 
Total Selll11ent Revenue 
Cargo 1,347.41 8 13.8 1 
Travel Related Services 17,114.88 6,753.57 
Less : Inter Segment Revenue - -
Cargo - -
Travel Related Services - -
Revenue from External Customers - -
Cargo 1,347.41 813.81 
Travel Related Services 17,114.88 6,753 .57 
Segment Profit/Loss before Interest 
and Tax - -

Cargo 19.98 0.10 
Travel Related Services 276.59 64.94 
Total 296.57 65.04 
Less : Interest 276.83 234.00 
Less : Other Un-allocable Expenditure 
net of - -
un-allocable income - -
Total Profit Before Tax 19.76 (169.21) 

The income from commission, Difference in Exchange, baggage handling and clearing charges, service 
charges, passport and visa and car hire has been shown net as in the past i.e. after deducting all 
expenses and payment in relation to the said head of income. 

Earnings per equity share 

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders 
of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
Diluted earnings for equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity 
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 
earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been 
issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are 
adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e., the 
average market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed 
converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares 
are determined independently for each period presented. 

Earnings per share is calculated as 
follows 

Net Profit /(Loss after Tax 
Weighted average number of Equity 
Shares outstandin 
Nominal Value ofE uit Shares 

2022-23 2021-2022 

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

12.80 ( 171.55) 

30,00,000 30,00,000 

10/- 10/-

0.43 (5.72) 



23 Provision for Retirement Gratuity 

(A) The Company has an unfunded gratuity plan. The status of the gratuity plan is as follows: 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2023 2022 
Discount Rate 6.98% 6.85% 
Expected Return on Plan Assets NIA NIA 

Mortality 
Indian Assured Indian Assured Lives 
Lives Mortality Mortality (2006-08) 

Future Salary Increases 5%p.a. 5% p.a. 
Disability - -
Attrition 

2.00% p.a. for all 2.00% p.a. for all 
service groups service groups 

Retirement 58 years 58 years 

(B) Table showing change in the Present value of Define Benefit obligation 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2023 2022 
Present Value of Benefit Obligation 
beginning of the period 59.59 56.18 
Interest Cost 4.15 3.84 
Current service cost 2.59 2.95 
Past service cost - -
Benefits paid - -
Actuarial (Gain) Loss on Obligation -
Due to Change in Financial 
Assumptions (2.80) (0.40) 

Actuarial (Gain) Loss on Obligation -
Due to Experience 11 .55 2.27 

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at 
the end of the period 66.67 59.59 

(C) Table showing change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets 

Fair Value of Plan Assets beginning of 
the period 
Expected Return on Plan Assets 
Contributions 
Benefits aid 
Actuarial (Gain) Loss on Plan Assets 
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of the 
period 
Total Actuarial Gain (Loss) to be 
recognized 



a 
b 

(D) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2023 2022 
Present Value of Obligation 66.67 59.59 
Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Liability (Assets) 59.59 56.18 
Unrecognised Past Service Cost - -
Liability (Asset) recognised in Balance 

59.59 56.18 Sheet 

(E) Expenses recognised in the Income Statement 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2023 2022 
Current Service Cost 2.59 2.95 
Net Interest Cost 4 .15 3.85 
Actuarial (gains)/Losses - -
Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
Past Service Cost - -
Expense recognised in P&L 6.75 6.80 

(F) Expenses recognised in statement of Other Comprehensive income (OCI) 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2023 2022 
Actuarial (gain) loss on Obligation 8.75 1.85 
Expense recognised in OCI 8.75 1.85 

24 a .. The gratuity and leave liabil ity is determined for all the employees on an overall basis based on the 
actuarial valuation done by an independent actuary. 

25 The revaluation of property in Adarsh Society and owned by the Company and leasehold property in 
Bhogilal Building was made on 0 1/04/ 1986 resulting into additions of Rs. I 04.27 (previous year Rs. 
104.27) The depreciation for the year includes Rs. I ,61 , 197 (Previous year Rs.1 ,6 1, 197) being 
depreciation on addition on account of revaluation and the equivalent amount out of revaluation 
reserve has been withdrawn and credited to Profit and Loss Account. 

26 Payment to Auditors: 

2023 
Audit Fees 3.85 4.07 
For Tax Audit 

(c) In any Other Manner Nil N il 



27 The company has the following investment and loans in the subsidiary companies: 

Name of subsidiary company 
Investment in 

Loan Amount 
Rupees 

Trade Wings Hotels Limited Rs.99,00,200/- Rs.NiL 

The losses ofTWHL exceed its paid up capital and free reserves as at 31st March, 2023. In view of 
the Long-Term involvement of the Company in TWHL, no provision has been made in the accounts 
for the said losses. In the opinion of the management, considering the market value of the assets of the 
TWHL, the overall net worth of TWHL will be higher than the amount invested in all the companies. 
Therefore the provision for diminution in value of investment is not required. 

28 Fixed Assets and other current assets used in the Company's business or liabilities contracted have not 
been identified to any of the reportable segments, as the fixed assets and services are used 
interchangeably between segments. The company believes that it is currently not practicable to provide 
segment disclosures relating to total assets and liabilities since a meaningful segregation of the 
available data is onerous. Fixed assets includes Rs.11,30,000/- related to purchase of property at 
Calcutta for which proper documentation and Registration procedures are pending. Auditor has relied 
upon the value of the property confirm and certified by management. 

During the year, the company has written off sundry debit balance of Rs.Nil/- (Previous Year 
Rs.417506/-), Loans and advance are Nil/- (Previous year Nil/-) and written back Rs.Nil/- (Previous 
Year Rs. 7933/-) as approved by board of directors. The effect of write off and write back has been 
shown in the Profit and Loss account. 

29 Amount due to small scale industrial undertaking if any have not been separately disclosed as required 
by part 1 of schedule of the Companies Act, 2013 as the suppliers have not provided information as to 
their status as Small-Scale Industrial undertakings ,Sundry debtors & creditors are subject to 
confirmation. 

30 Previous Year figures have been regrouped or reorganised wherever necessary to make them 
comparable with those of the current year. 

31 Additional Regulatory Information pursuant to Amendment in Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 

a The Company does not hold any Intangib le Assets. Accordingly, report ing on revaluation of Intangible 
Assets is not applicable. 

b The Company has not advanced loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs 
and the related parties. 

c The Company does not hold any Capital-work-in-progress. Accordingly, reporting on Capital Work-in­
progress ageing and completion schedule is not applicable. 

d The Company does not hold any Intangibles assets under development. Accordingly, reporting on 
Intangibles assets under development ageing and completion schedule is not applicable. 

e The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending 
against the Company for holding any benami property. 

f The Company is not declared wilfu l defaulter by and bank or financials institution or lender during the 
year. 

g The Company has not undertaken any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956. 

h The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond 
the statutory period . 

Reporting under Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements is not applicable to the 
Company. ~ 
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j The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or Company(ies), 
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfof the ultimate beneficiaries. 

k The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or Company(ies), including foreign entities 
(funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company 
shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or 

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that 
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income 
Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

m Reporting on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the Company. 

n The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial 

32 Financial Ratio's 
Working of Financial Ratio is shown in separate Annuxer 

This accounts has been approved in the Board Meeting held on 29th May 2023. 

As per our report of even date 

For Aalok Mehta & Co. 

CA Aalok Mehta 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 114970 
UDIN: 

Place: Mumbai 
Date:29th May 2023 

For Trade Wings Limited 

~ 
Dr. Shailen~1ittal 
Director 
DIN: 00221661 

Place: Mumba i 
Date:29th May 2 



(Currency :Rupees in L.akhs) 

32 Financial Ratios 

Sr no Particulars Numerator Denominator 
For the year ended For the year ended 

Variance Remarks 
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022 

a Current Ratio Current Assets Current liabilities 2.38 2.08 0.15 Increased in Current Assets 
b Debt-&iuitv Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 5.72 5.72 0.00 Increased in Borrowings 
c Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earning Available fo r Debt Services Debt Service 0.16 0.05 2.14 
d Return on Equity Ratio Net loss after tax Shareholder's Equity NOT APPLICABLE NOT APPLICABLE 0.00 
e !nventorv turnover ratio Revenue Average Inventory 323.13 321.! 8 0.01 Due to Covid effect 
f Trade Receivables turnover ratio Revenue Average Trade receivables 9.60 4.09 1.34 
g Trade payables turnover ratio Annual Cost of Goods sold & Other expense Avel1ll!e Trade oavables 36.93 16.02 1.30 Increase in Pavables 
h Net capital turnover ratio Revenue Working capital 12.35 4.81 1.57 Decrease in Turnover 
i Net profit ratio Net loss after tax Revenue 0.00 -0.02 -1.03 
j Return on Capital employed Earnings before Interest and taxes (EBlT) Capital employed 0.15 0.03 3 56 
k Return on Investment Income from investment Investment NOT APPLICABLE NOT APPLICABLE 0.00 



To, 

Aalok Mehta & Co. 
Chartered Accountant 

48/B, Girdhari Bhavan, Office No. 9, 2nd Floor, Sadashiv X Lane, 
Girgaum, Mu mbai- 400 004 

Tel No. 8850457209 

The Board of Directors 
Trade-wings Limited 

Report on the audit of Consolidated Annual Financial Results 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated annual financial results of Trade-wings 
Limited (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as the group} for 
the year ended on 31st March, 2023(the "Statement") attached herewith, being 
submitted by the Holding Company pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 33 of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regula tions , 2015 as 
amended ('Listing Regulations'). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate 
audited financial statement / financial results of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid 
consolidated annual financial result: 
a. Include the results for the year ended 31st March 2023 of the following entities 

a) Trade-Wings Limited - Holding Company 
b) Trade wings Hotels Limited- Subsidiary Company 

b. are presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the Listing 
Regulation in this regards and 

c. give a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement 
principles laid down in the applicable Indian Accounting Standards, and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of consolidated net profit and 
other comprehensive income and other financial information of the Group for the 
year ended 31 March 2023. 

Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standard on Auditing ("SAs") specified 
under section 143( 10) of the Companies Act, 2013("the Act"). Our responsibilities under 
those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Annual Financial Results section of our report. We are independent of the 
Group, in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act, and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our-other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 



the requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained 
by us, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated 
annual financial results. 

Emphasis of Matter(s) 

a. We draw attention to Note No.6 to consolidated audited results which state that 
no impairment of cost of investment in the wholly owned subsidiary Trade-wings 
Hotel limited, has been provided in the statements for the reasons stated in the 
note. 

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Management's and Board of Directors' responsibilities for the Consolidated Annual 
Financial Results 

These consolidated annual financial results have been prepared on the basis of the 
consolidated annual financial statements. 

The Holding Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the 
preparation and presentation of these consolidated annual financial results that give a 
true and fair view of the consolidated net profit/loss and other comprehensive income 
and other financial information of the Group in accordance with the recognition and 
measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under 
Section 133 of Act, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in 
compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. The respective Management 
and Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the each Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
polies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 
were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
record, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated 
annual financial results by Management and the Board of directors of Holding Company, 
as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated annual financial results, the respective Management and 
the Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and the respective 
Management and Board of Directors for assessing the ability to continue as going 
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company. 



Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Annual Financial 
Results 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 
annual financial results as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial results. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated annual 
financial results, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
through a separate report on the complete set of financial statements on whether 
the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures in the consolidated annual financial 
results made by the Management and Board of Directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Directors use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial results or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report . However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated annual 
financial results, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated annual 



financial results represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair pres en ta ti on. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial results/financial 
statements of the entities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated 
annual financial results. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audit of financial results/financial statem ents of such entities 
included in the consolidated annual financial results of which we are the 
indepen dent auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audit carried out by them. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of Holding Company and such 
other entities included in the consolidated annual financial results of which we are the 
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

We also performed procedures in accordance with the circular NO. 
CIR/ CFD / CMD 1/44/2019 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India under 
Regulation 33(8) of the Listing Regulations to the extent applicable. 

Other Matters 

a. The consolidated annual financial results include the r.esult for the quarter ended 
31st March 2023 being the balancing figure between the audited figures in respect 
of the full financial year and the published unaudited year to date figures up to 
the third quarter of the current financial year which were subject to limited review 
by us. 

For M/s.Aalok Mehta & CO 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.: 126756W 

A --\<fY\.J 
~A ~lok Mehta 
Proprietor ~ 
Membership No.: 114930 
UDIN:?.]>\ \\.\°'\3.of.$.(;-l)T.z.[J._.\ COO ,., 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29/05/2023 
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L 1 M 1 T E o TRADE-WINGS LIMITED 

A-2 Kaveri CHS, Plot No. 63, 
Sector - 17, Vashi, 
Navi Mumbai - 400 705. INDIA 
Phone : +91 (022) 6883 5801 
Email : companysecy@twltravel.com 

C IN :L63040GAl 949PLC000168 1 Vebsite: www. tradewings.in 

Rf"&d. Office: Isl floor. aik Buildinc. Opp. Don Bosco Hi: h School. Mahl1ma Ca.ndhi Road. Panaji. Goa · ..iOJ 001 

Ttl.: 022-6883~1 , E-n1ail: con1panyStt)'(i'twllra\tl.co10, Wtbsitt: www.trad~in:s.in 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT Of ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
(Rs. In Lokhs) 

As at 31-03-2023 As at 3 1-03-2022 
Sr.No. P1rticulars 

(Audited) (Audited) 

A ASSETS 

I Non-current anets 
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2,341.1 2 2,438 53 
(b) financtal Assets 

(1) Loans 28.88 27.59 
(i) Deferred tax assets (net) . -
(j) Current Tax (Net) 92.38 109.99 
(k) Non Current Investments 13.o7 13.07 
(I) Other non-current assets 73. 14 63.86 

To1al Non-Current Assets ( I) 2,548.59 2,653.04 

2 Current as.sets 
(a) Inventories 144 13 158. 10 
(b) Financial Assels -

(1) Current lnvcS1ments 
(11) Trade rcccivables 2,076.75 1,985.28 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 464.73 340.86 
(1v) Bank balances 01her 1han(111) above - . 
(v) Loans 75.75 142.24 
(vi) Others Current fmanc1al Assets 57.64 125.30 

(c) Curren! Tax Assets (Net) -
(d) Other currcn1 assets 143.61 169.47 

Total Current Assets (2) 2,962.61 2,921.25 

Total Assets (A=I + 2) 5,511.20 5,574.29 

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
3 Equity 

(a) Equity Share cap11al 300.00 300.00 
(b) Other Equity -2,0 15 .27 -2,244.83 

( c) Other Reserves 

Total Equity (3) - 1,715.27 -1,944.83 
4 Liabilities 

4(1) !Non-current hab1l11ies 
(a) financial L1ab1h11es 

(1) Borrowings 1,961.75 1,948.68 
(b) Prov1s1ons 31 4 29 278 84 
(c) Deferred tax hab1l111cs (Ne1) 198.97 237 36 
(d) Other non-current hab1l111es 681.27 858.82 

Total Non-current liabil ilics (4(i)) 3,156.29 3,323.70 

4(11) Curren! liabilities 
(a) Financial L1ab1h11es 
(1) Borrowings 377.35 3 10.80 
(11) Trade payables 1,452.80 1,431.68 
(111) Other linonc1al hab1h11es (01her than 1hose 

135.88 156.78 
socc1fied in Hem lal 
(b) Other current hab1l111es 1,876.40 2,190.74 
( c) Pro,•151ons 227.74 105.43 
(d) Curren• Tax L1ab1hues (Net) 

To1al Current liubililies (4(ii)) 4,070. 18 4, 195.41 

Total Equity and Liabilities (B • J + 4(i) + 4(ii)) 5,511.20 5,574.29 

For T rade Vings Limited Wff\'~ , S' 
~( -,~ ,. 

Dr.Sha i~ 1~0~1 Date: 29th /\lay 2023 Dl : 02 . . 'tr 
Place: Mumbai C hairma n and Managing Direc I () 

• -

CIN : L63040GA1949PLC000168 

Registered Office : 1st Floor, Naik Building, Opp. Don Bosco High School, M. G. Road, Panajlm, Goa. 403 001 . India. 
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LIMITED 

TRADE-WINGS LIMITED 
Cl :L63040GAl9~9PLCOOOl68 

A-2 Kaveri CHS, Plot No. 63, 
Sector - 17, Vashi, 
Navi Mumbai - 400 705. INDIA 
Phone : +91 (022) 6883 5801 
Email : companysecy@twltravel.com 

Rei?d. Office: I sl Floor, Naik Buildin2, Opp. Don Bosco Hi2h School, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Panaj i, ~b~ OOYWW t d ngs.in . ra ew1 
Ttl.: 022-683.15801, E·m•il:compan)·stc)'(i;t" ll rl\'tl.com. \\ltbsilt:www.cradtwlncs.in 

STATEMENT OF AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RES ULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED MARCH J I, 2013 

(Rs. In l1khs tntpt Per shin v1lut) 

Consolidated Consolidattd 

Quu1tr Endtd Yurtndtd 

ll-03-2023 Jl-12-2022 ( 31.03.2022 Jl.03.2023 31.03.2022 
(Audiltd) Un· Audi1cd) (Audi«d) (Audlled) (Audiltd) 

I Revenue from openuion.s 

a Revenue from operations S.868 00 5828.SS 2,660.37 21,362 OS 8,704 74 

b Other Income 48 97 147 46 81 80 4 25 S6 278 13 

To1al Rennue (•+b) 5,916.97 5976.01 2,742.17 21,787.61 8.982.87 

2 Ea:pensts 

a Cos1 of Traded Goods 4,711 46 4664 94 2,13002 17,408 10 6,979 35 

b Changes in mventoncs of finished goods. work • on · 000 
000 0.00 0.00 

nrnu,-ess and stock • in • trade 
c Employee Benefits Expense 3SS JO 342 89 11 9 7S 1,193 19 522.0S 

d Finance c:ostS 62 S6 113 28 7544 38066 3S543 
e Deprec1auon and Amonisauon expense 2929 3646 38 39 138 67 138 62 

( Othu Expense 4S9 82 Sl 900 661 86 2,372 11 1,278 7S 

Tolal Elptnstt (a+l>+c+d+t) s.618.4.J 5676.57 3025.46 21,492.73 9,274.20 

Prori1 / (Loss) bdott Exup1ional lftm and Tu (I • 2) 298.54 299.43 · 283.29 294.88 ·291.JJ 

3 Tai upenns 

(1) Currtnl Tax 000 000 000 

(11) Deftrred Tu 38 39 000 23 S3 38 39 23.S3 

(111) ln1cres1 on Delayed TDS 0.00 019 0. 19 
(1v) Earhcr year Service Tax / Income Tax paid 000 000 000 000 000 

Tolal Tu E:a:ptnsts 38.39 0.00 23.72 38.39 13.72 

Prolil (Loss) for lhe period from conlitmin' Openuions 336.93 299.43 ·307.01 333.27 -315.05 

4 Profit (Loss ) from Discontinued Opcra1ions 000 000 000 0 00 000 

5 Tax expenses of 01scontmucd Opcrauons 000 000 000 000 000 

Prorill(loss) from Disconrinurd o~rarioru (a rter In) 000 000 000 000 000 

Prolit/(lou) for 1he period 336.93 299.43 -307.01 JJJ.27 ·315.05 

6 Othtr Comprehtnsive Income~ net or Income Tax 

I (a) hems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 000 000 000 000 000 

I (b) Income tax relating to items that wtll not be rcclass1ficd 000 000 000 000 000 
tn Prnfit or Loss 
(a) Gra1u11y -103 70 0.00 I S S2 ·103 70 IS S2 

(b) Lea\e Encashmenl 000 

Total other comprehmsivr Income. nel of Income Tai -103.70 0.00 15.52 · IOJ.70 15.52 

Total comprtht.nsivt locon1e, ntt of lncomt Ta.a 133.ll 299.43 · 291 .49 229.57 -299.53 

7 Paid· up equity sha.rt capiral (face value Rs IO/· per share) 30000 30000 300 00 JOOOO 30000 

a 01her Equ11y 000 000 000 000 000 

9 Eamin&s per Sbart (EPS) front conrinuin& and 
discontinued ope-rations (R.s. 10/· each) (nol annuafind) 

(a) Basic 11 23 998 -10 23 11 11 ·IOSO 

(b) 01lu1ed 11 23 9.98 -10 23 1111 ·10 50 

Sec accompanying note to the financial results 

Notes: 
(I) The above financial results were reviewed by the Audit Commmee 1u 11.s meet mg held on 29th may 2023 & were 1hereafter approved by !he Board of 01rcc1ors al lls meeun~ 

held on 291h May 2023 

(2) This sta1emen1 has been prepared 1n accordance with the Companies (Indian Accoun11n3 Standards) Rules. 2015 (Ind AS) prescribed under scc.11on I 33 of Companies Act, 20 13 

and other rec.ogn1scd accounting pracuccs and policies 10 the e.xtcnt applicable. 
(3) The figurts for 1he quaner ended 3 1 March 2023 • re balancing fi gures bttwetn aud11ed figures In respecl of full financial )Ur ended 31 March 2022 and 1he pubhshed year 10 
date fi gures up10 1he third quaner ended 31 December 2022. wtuch have been regrouped/ rearmnged wherever necessary 

(4) The Company hu, pursuant to the proV1s1ons or Ind AS I 08. 1dcn11fied its business segments as 1u pnmary reportable segments. which compnses of Tra,el Rela1cd Scrv1ces 
and Cargo &. Olheri 

(S) Asseu & L11b1h1tes 1s annexed hereto with these financial resuhs 

(6) No Provuaon for 1mpamnent of 1n\.estmenu 1n ns wholly o""-ned subs1d1aty. Trade Wings Hotels Lid has been made m the F1nanc1al Results, u the manl£ement 1s expecuna 
1he posnive trends in the resuh of the subs1d1ary on going concern basis 

(7) The fiaures for 1heyear ended 31 March, 2023 have been audued by 1he s .. 1u1ory Aud11ors of1he Company The R<pon oflhe S141UIOry Audnor IS unquahfied 

(8) These Fmanc11l Results have been prepared on accordance ""h Indian Accounung S11ndatds (lnd·AS) prescnbed under sec11on 133 of 1he Companott Acl, 2013 r .. d ""h 1he 
relevant rules thereunder as amended from ume 10 ume and m terms of Rcgula11on 33of1he SEBI (L1sung Obhgations and Disclosure Requ1re.ments) Rey,ulauons, 201 S (Listing 
Reaul111ons) on accordance wnh Ind-AS 108, Optrallng Segments. Segmtnl onformauon has been provided m 1he aud11ed Consohdlled financ11I resuhs of1he Company 

(9) Previous penod figures have been re-grouped I re-class1fi~ wherc\.cr necessary. to confirm to th is period's c la.ss1fica11on 

For Trade -

Dale: 29th May 2023 

Place: Mumbai 

Chairman and Managing Di 

CIN : L63040GA1949PLC000168 

Registered Office : 1st Floor, Naik Building, Opp. Don Bosco High School, M. G. Road, Panajim, Goa - 403 001 . India. 



t lifiiile:~ RAD E WINGS LTD - ·--.-.-

onsolidated b sd FIM. s latefuenfro..'ite yea r ended 31st March, 2023 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Profit after exceptional items and tax 
Adjustment fo r : 
Depreciation and amonization expenses 
Sundry Dr. blance W/off 
Deferred Tax Liability 
Provision for Tax 
Loss/(profit) from pannership firm 
Unrealised Exchange difference 
Finance Cost 
Other Tax Expense 
OCI Gratuity 
Loss or Profit from Sale of Fixed Asset 
Interest income 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Adjustments for : 
{Increase) I Decrease in Trade and other receivables 
(Increase) I Decrease in inventories 
{Increase) I Decrease in shon term loans and advances 
(Increase) I Decrease in Non Current investments 
(Increase) I Decrease in Other current assets 
{Increase) I Decrease in Other Non current assets 
(Increase) I Decrease m Other current Financial assets 
(Increase) I Decrease in long term loans and advances 
{Increase) I Decrease in borrowings 
{Increase) I Decrease in other non-current liabilities 
(Increase) I Decrease in long term provisions 
(Increase) I Decrease in trade and other payables 
(Increase) I Decrease in other financial liabilities 
(Increase) I Decrease in other current liabilities 
(Increase) I Decrease in Shon term provisions 
{Increase) I Decrease in Shon term borrowings 
Cash generated from operations 

Earlier Year Taxes 
Current Taxes 
Interest on Delayed TDS 
{Increase) I Decrease in Current Tax (TDS Net) 
Add: Reduction in Provision for Taxes 

A NET CASH FROM OPERAT ING ACTIVITIES 

B CASH FLOW FROM I 'VEST! G ACTIVITIES: 

Sale proceeds of propeny, plant and equipment 
Purchase proceeds of propeny, plant and equipment 

Income from investments 
Matured investments in FD 
Interest income 

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCI G ACTIVITI ES: 
Reduction in Revaluation Reserve 
Repayment of borrowings I Secured Loans 
Borrowings from Related panies 
Repayment of borrowings from related panies 

TRADE WINGS 

2022-23 

Rupees in Lakhs 

138.67 

-.33 

380.66 

-103.70 

.41 

-14.08 

-91.44 

13.97 

66.49 

.00 

25.86 

-9.29 

67.66 

-1.29 

13.07 

-177.55 

35.45 

21.13 

-20.90 

-314.35 

122.32 

66.55 

17.61 

3.00 

-44.67 

.33 

14.08 

CIN : L63040GA1949PLC000168 

294.87 

401.64 

696.5 1 

-182.33 

514.18 

17.61 

531.79 

-27.26 

-27.26 

A-2 Kaveri CHS, Plot No. 63, 
Sector - 17, Vashi, 
Navi Mumbai - 400 705. INDIA 
Phone : +91 (022) 6883 5801 
Email : companysecy@twltravel.com 
Website : www.tradewings.in 

TRADE WINGS 

2021-22 

Ru1lees in Lakhs 

138.62 

.00 

-11.97 

355.43 

15.52 

-291.33 

488.34 -9.27 
f-------1 

-535.21 

23.75 

133.82 

.00 

756.80 

3.04 

-14.02 

6.17 

878.68 

-451.98 

-29.41 

385.46 

-1321.53 

66.54 

-32.78 

310.80 

-.19 

-52.96 

.00 

-14.13 

11.97 

9.27 

197.01 

180.15 
377. 16 

-53.14 

324.01 

7.10 

7. 10 

Registered Office : 1st Floor, Naik Building, Opp. Don Bosco High School, M. G. Road, Panajim, Goa - 403 001 . India. 



Unrealised exchange difference 
Interest and financial charges paid 

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

(i) NET CASH FLOWS DURING THE YEAR (A+B+C) 
(ii) Cash and cash eQuivalents (opening balance) 

Cash and cash equivalents (Closing Balance balance) 

Total or (i) + (ii) 

Balanct Sheet Amount Rs. 

-380.66 -380.66 -355.43 

-380.66 
123.86 
340.86 
464.73 

464.73 

464.73 

For TRADE WINGS LTD. 

0<. Sh•H'"~.Y.-­
DIN: 0022 1661 ,,_...,--­
Chairman and Managing Director 
Place: Mumbai 

-355.43 

-355.43 
-24.32 
365.1 8 
340.86 

340.86 

340.86 



TRADE WINGS LIMITED 
Consolidated Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31st, 2023. 

1 Company Overview and significant Accounting Policies 

Company Overview 
The Company is a Public Limited Company, incorporated in November, 1949 and listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange 
(SSE). The company is engaged in the businesses of travel and travel related services, working as travel agent and tour 
operator, Cargo and Foreign Exchange business and also engaged in hoteliering business. 

2 Basis of preparation of financial statements 
(i) Compliance with Ind-AS 
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) on accrual basis under the 
historical cost convention and the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 
133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

The Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards. 
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a 
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a 
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 

(ii) Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
1) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 
2) Assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell; 

3) Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; 

(iii) Current and Non-Current classification 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle (Twelve 
Months) and other criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to the Act. 

(iv) Rounding of amounts 
All amounts disclosed in the Financial Statements and Notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the 
requirement of Schedule 111 , unless otherwise stated. 

3 Use of estimates 
Preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that could affect the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets, 
liabilities, revenues and expenses during the reported periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate 
changes in estimates are reflected in financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their 

effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 



4 Property, Plant and Equipment 
The Company has applied for the one time transition exemption of considering the carrying cost on the transition date i.e. 
April I , 2016 as the deemed cost under IND AS. Hence, regarded thereafter as historical cost. 

Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and 
impairment, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. 
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they 

are incurred. 

5 Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 
Depreciation is provided on Written Down Value Method over the estimated useful lives of assets. 
The Company depreciates its property, plant and equipment over the useful life in the manner prescribed in Schedule II to the 
Act, and management believe that useful life of assets are same as those prescribed in Schedule II to the Act. 

Useful Life adopted by 
Useful Life prescribed 

Asset as per Schedule II of 
Company 

Companies Act 

Building 60 years 60 years 

Plant & Machinery 15 years 15 years 

Furnitures 08 years 08 years 

Vehicles 08 years 08 years 

Office Equipments 05 years 05 years 

Computer 03 years 3 years 

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and 
equipment measured as per the previous GAAP and used that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and 

equipment. 

Expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment are capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cost and related 
accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant 
gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the 
carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell. 

6 Investments 

(i) Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 
Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are recognised at cost as per Ind AS 27. 

(ii) Investments and other financial assets 
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 
(a) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the Statement of 

Profit and Loss). 
(b) Those measured at amortised cost 

Profit or Loss on sale of long-term investments is arrived at after deducting the average carrying amount of the total holding 

of investments on the date of sale. ~ C 
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7 Financial instruments 

Initial recognition 
The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognised at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables 
which are initially measured at transaction price. 

Subsequent measurement 

a. Non-derivative financial instruments 

Financial assets carried at amortised cost 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold 
the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business 
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at fair value through statement of profit and loss 
A financial asset which is not c lassified in any of the above categories is subsequently adjusted for fair value through the 
statement of profit and loss. 

Financial liabilities 
Financial liabi lities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other 
payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts are recorded at transaction value. 

Derecognition of Financial Instruments 
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the financial asset expires or it 
transfers the financial asset and the financial asset qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability or part 
of financial liabi lity is derecognised from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation mentioned in the contract is 
discharged or cancelled or expires. 

b. Share capital 
Ordinary shares are classified as Equity. 

c. Fare Value and Risk Management 
Seperate table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in 
the fair value hierarchy. 



7 (a) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the consideration paid for services. 
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount 
that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those 
services. Revenue from rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes and discounts. 

(a) Income from operations 

The Company earns revenue from travel and related services and financial services 

(i) Financial services 
It comprise of income arising from the buying and se lling of foreign currencies 
on the net margins earned, commissions on sale of foreign currency 
denominated prepaid cards, incentives earned in relation to these cards. 
Revenue from financial services are recognized by reference to the time of 
services rendered. 

(ii) Travel and related services 
It comprises of leisure tours packages within India and outside fnd ia along with 
travel related services viz travel insurance and visa services. Revenue on leisure 
tours I holiday's packages are recognized on the completion of the performance 
obligation which is on the date of departure of the tour. It also includes income 
from the sale of airline tickets which is recognized as an agent on the basis of 
net commission earned, at the time of issuance of tickets, as the Company does 
not assume any performance obligation post the confirmation of the issuance of 
an airline ticket to the customer. Performance linked bonuses from airlines are 
recognized as and when the performance obligations under the schemes are 
achieved. 

(iii) Rental Income 
Income from other sources is mainly comprised of Rental income which is 
accounted on accrual basis. 

(iv) Income from cargo 
Revenue is recognized only when risks and rewards incidental to ownership are 
transferred to the customer; it can reliably measure to expect ultimate collection, 
Revenue from operations includes collection on account of freight, services, 
adjusted for discount (net). 

( v ) Hotel Business 
Revenue is derived from hotel service including rental of rooms and sales of 
food and beverages and other allied services. Revenue is recognised when the 
rooms are occupied and the services have been rendered. 

Interest Income is recognised on a time proportion basis by reference to the 
principle outstanding and at the rate applicable. 



8 Impairment 

a. Non-financial assets 
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the 
recoverable amount (i.e., the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual 
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash nows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such 
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. 

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognised in the statement of profit and loss is measured 
at the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An 
impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimate used to determine the 
recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net off any accumulated amortisation or 
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. 

b. Financial Assets: 
The Company recognises loss allowance for Financial Assets which are not adjusted for Fair Value through the Statement of 
Profit and Loss The amount of expected credit loss (or reversal) that requires an adjustment is treated as an impairment gain 
or loss in the statement of profit and loss. 

c. Inventories: 
Inventories of I Iotel Divisions are valued at cost on First-In-First-Out basis. Requisite adjustment for spoilage, obsolescence 
or damage is made wherever necessary. Cost of operation and other supplies are charged to expenses at the time of issue. 

Inventories of Foreign Exchange division is valued at Bank Rate of 31st March, 2023. 

9 Provisions and contingencies 
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be 
reasonably estimated, and it is probable that an outflow of econom ic benefits will be require to settle the obligation. 

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence will be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable 
estimate of the obligation cannot be made 

Guarantee in form of Ne2ative lien on ownership property 2iven/a2reed to be 2iven by the Company in favour of: 

Guarantees in favour of 
Financial Assistance 

Limit Sanctioned Amount outstanding As at 
availed by 

31/03/2023 31 /03/2022 
Rupees in Lakhs 

(a) Bank Of Baroda 
Trade Wings Logistics 

60.00 59.22 25.46 
(India) Pvt. Ltd 

(b) Guarantees given for bank towards Corporate Cards 38.00 35.00 35.00 



10 Foreign Currency 

Functional currency 
The functional currency of the Company is the Indian Rupee. These financial settlements are presented in Indian Rupees. 

Transactions 

Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the functional currency at exchange rates in 
effect at the balance sheet date. The gains or losses resulting from such translation are included in net profit in the statement 
of profit and loss. 

Transaction gains or losses realised upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are included in determining net profit 
for the period in which the transaction in settled. Revenue, expense and cash now items denominated in foreign currencies 
are translated into the relevant functional currencies using the exchange rate in effect on the date of the transaction. 

11 Employee benefits 

a) Short term 
Short term benefits include salaries and performance incentives. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee's benefits 
expected to be paid in exchange of service rendered by the employees are recognii:ed as an expense in the statement of profit 
and loss during the year when the employees render the service to the company. 

b) Long term 

The company has defined contribution and defined benefits plan. The plans are financed by the company and in case of some 
defined contribution plans by company along with employees. 

• Defined contribution plans 
The company's contribution to provident fund and family pension fund made to regular authorities and where company has 
no further obligation are considered as define contribution plans and are charged as expenses in the statement of profit and 
loss as they fall due based on amount of contribution required to be made. 

• Defined benefit plans 
Expenses for defined benefits gratuity are calculated as at the balance sheet date by independent actuaries (using the 
projected unit credit method) in a manner that distributes expenses over the employees working life .These commitment are 
valued at the present value of the expected future payment with consideration for calculated future salary increase , using 
discount rate corresponding to the interest rate estimated by the actuary having regard to the interest rate on government 
bonds with remaining term that is a lmost equivalent to the average balance working period of employees. Actuarial gain/ 
losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise. 

c) Other employee benefits 

The Company has a scheme for compensated absences (Leave Encashment) for employees, the liability for which is 
determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation, carried out at the Balance Sheet date. 

12 Leases 

The Company's significant leasing arrangements arc in respect of' leases for residential and office premises. The leasing 
arrangements, which are non-cancellable, are in the range of eleven months and usually renewable by mutual consent on 
agreed terms. The aggregate lease rentals payable is charged as rent including lease rentals. 

13 Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acq uisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are treated as direct 
cost and are capital ised as part of cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which 
they are incurred. 



14 Income Tax 

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the 
applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and 
to unused tax losses. 
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statement. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates 
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are excepted to apply when 
the related deferred income tax assets is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, only if, it is probable that 
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities 
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where 
the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. 

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, respectively. 

15 Cash flow statement 

16 

17 

18 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a 
non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or 
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities 
of the Company are segregated 

In the opinion of the Management of the Company, carrying amount of all Current Assets, Loans and Advances and other 
receivables is not less than their realisable value in the ordinary course of business. 

In the opinion of management of the Company, amount included under the heads loans and advances are good and realizable 
in the ordinary course of business. 

Income tax provision, including for Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT), has not been made in view of the carried forward 
business loss and tax depreciation. The Company has not recognised Deferred Tax Assets on unabsorbed depreciation and 
carried forward tax losses in the absence of virtual certainty of future taxable income against which such deferred tax assets 
can be realised. 



19 Related Party Disclosure: 

[a[ List of Related Parties: 
I. Narayani Hospitality & Academic Inst. P.L 
2 Dr S P. Mittal 
3 Narayani Associates 
4 R.J Trade Wings Pvt. Ltd 

Holding Company 
Key Management Person 
Associates and Enuties over which TWL 1s able to exercise significant influence. 
Entities where director 1s common 

[bl Transactions during the year with related parties are as under: 

Associates over 
which TWL is able 

Sr. Key Management 
to exercise 

Nature of Transactions Holding Compa ny significant influence. Partnership Firm 
o. Personal 

And Entities where 
Director is having 

significant influence 

I Interest Paid N il 66.18 Nil 
(Previous Year) (Nil) 49.85 (Nil) 

2 Interest Received Nil Nil 1.66 
(Previous Year) (Nil) (Nil) 3.22 

J Share ofNarayam Associates 0 .33 
'Previous Year) 11.96 

4 Amount Received I Paid towards Loan 

Balance as on 
3 lst March, 2022 Nil 592.29 10.71 
(Previous Year) Nil 550.42 46.74 

Amount Received 
during the year 2 1.85 66. 18 324.56 
(Previous year) 0.00 49.85 154.59 

Amount Paid 
during the year 2 1.85 86.94 324.50 
(Previous year) 9.85 7.98 73.56 

Balance as on 
31st March, 2023 (NIL) 571.52 10.65 
(Previous Year) 8.72 592.29 10.71 

20 Segmen t Reporting 

For the year ended 
Description Mar-23 Mar-22 

Rupees in Lakhs 

Total Se ment Revenue 
Caro I 347.4 1 813.8 1 
Travel Related Services 2,044.20 8, 169.07 
Less : Inter Se ment Revenue 
Caro 
Travel Related Services 

1,347.4 1 813.8 1 
2,044.20 8,169.07 

cot Profit/Loss before Interest and Tax 
Caro 19.98 0.10 

Travel Related Services 655.55 64.01 

Total 675.53 64.11 

Less : Interest 380.66 355.43 

Less : Other Un-allocable Ex nditure net of 
un-allocable income 

Total Profit Before Tax 294.88 (291.32) 



21 The income from commission, Difference in Exchange, baggage handling and clearing charges, service charges, passport and 
visa and car hire has been shown net as in the past i.e. after deducting all expenses and payment in relation to the said head of 
income. 

22 Earnings per equity sha re 

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by 
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings for equity share is computed 
by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares 
considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could 
have been issued upon conversion of all d ilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for 
the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e., the average market value of the 
outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless 
issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. 

Earnine:s per sha re is calculated as follows 2022-23 2021-22 
(Rupees in Lakhs) 

Net Profit /(Loss) after Tax 333.27 (315.05' 
Weighted average number of Equity Shares 300.00 300.00 
outstanding 
Nominal Value of Equity Shares 10/- 10/-
Earnings per share - Basic and diluted 11.1 1 ( 10.50) 

23 Provision fo r Retirement G ratuity 

(A) T he Company has an unfunded gratuity plan. T he status of the gra tuity plan is as follows: 

Pa rticulars As at March 31, 2023 As a t March 31 , 2022 

Discount Rate 6.84% 6.77% 
Expected Return on Plan Assets NIA NIA 

Mortality 
Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2012-14) Mortality (20 12-14) 

Future Salary Increases 5%p.a. 5%p.a. 
Disability - -
Attrition 

2.00% p.a. for all 2.00% p.a. for all 
service groups service groups 

Retirement 58 years 58 years 

(B) Table showing cha nge in the Present value of Define Benefit obligation 

Particula rs As at March 3 1, 2023 As at March 3 1, 2022 

Present Value of Denefit Obligation beginning of 
295.94 354.47 

the period 
Interest Cost 19.50 22.52 
Current service cost 9. 17 10.77 
Past service cost - -
Benefits paid 55.81 (7 1.05' 

Actuarial (Gain) Loss on Obligation - Due to 1.50 (0.05) 
Change in Demographic Assumptions 

Actuarial (Gain) Loss on Obligation - Due to 4 1.3 1 2.58 
Change in Financial Assumptions 

Actuarial (Gain) Loss on Obligation - Due to 60.89 ( 18. 10) 
Experience 

Present Value of Benefit Obligation beginning of 
the period 

295.95 -
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of 

364. 10 295.95 
the period -
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24 

25 

(C) Table showing change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets 

Fair Value of Plan Assets beginning of the period - -
Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
Contributions - -
Benefits paid - -
Actuarial (Gain) Loss on Plan Assets - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of the period - -
Total Actuarial Gain (Loss) to be recognized - -

(D) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Present Value of Obligation 364.10 295.95 
Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Liability (Assets) 295.94 354.47 
Unrecognised Past Service Cost - -
Liability (Asset) recognised in Balance Sheet 295.94 354.47 

(E) Expenses recognised in the Income Statement 

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Current Service Cost 9.17 10.77 
Net Interest Cost 19.50 22.52 
Actuarial (gains)/Losses - -
Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
Past Service Cost - -
Expense recognised in P&L 28.67 33.29 

(F) Expenses recognised in statement of Other Comprehensive income (OCI) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Actuarial (gain) loss on Obligation 102.20 -15.52 

Expense recognised in OCI 102.20 (15.52) 

a. The gratuity and leave liability is determined for all the employees on an overall basis based on the actuarial valuation done 
by an independent actuary. 

The revaluation of property in Adarsh Society and owned by the Company and leasehold property in Bhogilal Building was 
made on 0 I /04/1986 resulting into additions of Rs. I 04.27 (previous year Rs. I 04.27) The depreciation for the year includes 
Rs.1.61 /-(Previous year Rs.1.61 /-) being depreciation on addition on account of revaluation and the equivalent amount out of 
revaluation reserve has been withdrawn and credited to Profit and Loss Account. 
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(a) 
(b) 
(c) 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

Payment to Auditors: 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Audit Fees 6.30 5.62 
For Tax Audit 

In any Other Manner Nil Nil 

Sundry Debtors and Sundry Creditors are subject to confirmation 

Fixed Assets and other current assets used in the Company's business or liabilities contracted have not been identified to any 
of the reportable segments, as the fixed assets and services are used interchangeably between segments. The company 
believes that it is currently not practicable to provide segment disclosures relating to total assets and liabilities since a 
meaningful segregation of the available data is onerous. Fixed assets includes Rs. I 1.30/- related to purchase of property at 
Calcutta for which proper documentation and Registration procedures are pending. Auditor has relied upon the value of the 
property confirm and certified by management. 

During the year, the company has written off sundry debit balance of Rs.65.13/- (Previous Year Rs.4.18/-), Loans and 
advance are Nil/- (Previous year Nil/-) and written back Rs.3.03/- (Previous Year Rs. 0.08/-) as approved by board of 
directors. The effect of write off and write back has been shown in the Profit and Loss account. 

Amount due to Micro and Small scale industrial undertaking if any have not been separately disclosed as required by part I 
of schedule ofthe Companies Act, 2013 as the suppliers have not provided information as to their status as Small-Scale 
Industrial undertakings, Sundry debtors & creditors are subject to confirmation. 

Previous Year figures have been regrouped or reorganised wherever necessary to make them comparable with those of the 
current year. 

The MOU that was executed by and between one of the promoters of the Company with Tulip Hotels Pvt. Ltd. inter alia for 
management of Bogmallo Beach Resort and for executing agreement to sell 50% of the shares of the company on 26th April 
2000 has been terminated by the said promoter vide its Advocate's notice dated 27th January 2007 with retrospective effect 
from I st November 2006. The company along with its promoters has also initiated legal proceedings against Tulip Hotels 
Pvt. Ltd. and its directors and certain employees in Mumbai and Goa courts and the same are subjud ice as of the date of the 
signing of the balance sheet. 

The company as per a legal opinion of its Legal Advisors and a Chartered Accountant has shown an amount of Rs.1629.60/­
towards "Money Received Pending Appropriate Treatment" under Other Current Liabilities. 

Notwithstanding the above, the company has sought to appropriate the said amount against the damages that have been 
claimed by the company against Tulip Hotels Pvt. Ltd. The company has therefore thought it fit to categorize the said 
amount under Other Current Liabilities ti ll the outcome of the suit pending in the Vasco Da Gama court. 

32 Additional Regulatory Information pursuant to Amendment in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 

a The Company does not hold any Intangible Assets. Accordingly, reporting on revaluation of Intangible Assets is not 
applicable. 

b The Company has not advanced loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related 
parties. 

c The Company does not hold any Capital-work-in-progress. Accordingly, reporting on Capital Work-in-progress ageing and 
completion schedule is not applicable. 

d The Company does not hold any Intangibles assets under development. Accordingly, reporting on Intangibles assets under 
development ageing and completion schedule is not applicable. 

c The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company 
for holding an.~~..., 
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f The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by and bank or financials institution or lender during the year. 
g The Company has not undertaken any transactions with companies struck ofTunder section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 

or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956. 
h The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 

Reporting under Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements is not applicable to the Company. 

j The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or Company(ies), including foreign 
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company (ultimate beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries. 

k The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or Company(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with 
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfof the ultimate beneficiaries. 

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any 
other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, I 961. 

m Reporting on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the Company. 
n The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year .. 

33 Financial Ratio's 
Working of Financial Ratio is shown in separate Annexure. 

This accounts has been approved in the Board Meeting held on 29th May 2023. 

As per our report of even date 

For Aalok Mehta & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. I 26756W 

CA Aalok Mehta 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 114970 
UDIN: 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29th May 2023 

For Trade Wings Limited 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29th May 2023 



Notes to the financials statements 
For the year ended 31st March 2023 

( Rupees in Lakhs) 

33 Financial Ratios 

Sr no Particulan Numerator 

a Current Ratio Current Assets 

b Debt-Eouitv Ratio Total Debt 

c Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earning Available for Debt Services 

d Return on EQuitv Ratio Net loss after tax 

e lnventorv turnover ratio Revenue 

f Trade Receivables turnover rat io Revenue 

I! Trade navables turnover ratio Annual Cost of Goods sold & Other exoense 

h Net capital turnover ratio Revenue 

i Net orofit ratio Net loss after tax 

j Return on Caoital emolovcd Earnings before Interest and taxes (EBIT) 

k Return on Investment Income from investment 

Denominator 

Current liabil ities 

Shareholder's Eouitv 

Debt Service 

Shareholder's Eouitv 
Average Inventory 

Average Trade receivables 

Averal!C Trade oavables 
Working capnal 

Revenue 
Capital employed 
Investment 

For the year ended For the year ended 
Variance Remarks 

31-Mar-2023 31-Ma r-2022 
0.73 0.70 0.05 Increased in Current Assets 

7.80 7.53 0.04 lncreascd in BorrowinRS 

0.33 0.08 3.23 

NOT APPLICABLE NOT APPLICABLE 0.00 

95.72 51.21 0.87 Due to Covid effect 

10.52 5.07 1.08 
13.71 6.67 1.06 Increase in Payables 

- 19.29 -6 83 I 82 Decrease in Turnover 

0 .02 -0.04 -1.43 

0 29 0.03 10.39 
NOT APPLICABLE NOT APPLICABLE 0.00 
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TRADE WINGS LIMITED 

CIN: L63040GAI949PLCOOOl68 

Registered Office: 1st Floor, Naik Building, Opp. Don Bosco High School, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Panaji North Goa 403001 

Tel no.: +91 (022) 4230 9455, Fax.: +91 (022) 2204 6053 

Email: companysecy@twltravel.com,Website: www.tradewings.in 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

73rd Annual General Meeting on Monday, 18th September 2023 at 1st Floor, Naik Building, 

Opp. Don Bosco High School, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Panaji, North Goa 403001 

 

Please fill attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting venue 

 

Name of the members(s)……………………………………………….……………………… 

Name of the Proxy*………………………………………………………….…………………. 

Registered address ……………………………………………………….…………….……… 

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

E-mail ID:…………………………………………………………………..…………………. 

Folio No:……………….DP ID#:……………………………. Client ID#:……………..…… 

Number of shares held ……………………………………….. 

 

I certify that I am a registered member/ proxy for the registered Member of the Company and 

I hereby record my presence at the 73rd Annual General Meeting on Monday, 18th September 

2023 at 10:30 am at 1st Floor, Naik Building, Opp. Don Bosco High School, Mahatma Gandhi 

Road, Panaji North Goa 403 001. 

 

…………………………………………….. 

Signature of member/Authorized Representative/proxy holder(s) 

 

Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the hall. 

*Applicable in case Proxy is attending the meeting. 

# Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form. 
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Form No. MGT – 11: PROXY FORM 
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

Trade Wings Limited 

CIN: L63040GA1949PLCOOO168 

Regd. off: 1st Floor, Naik Building, Opp.Don Bosco High School, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Panaji Goa 403001 

Tel no.: +91 (022) 4230 9455, Fax.: +91 (022) 2204 6053 

Email Id: companysecy@twltravel.com, website: www.tradewings.in 

 

73
rd

 Annual General Meeting – 18th September, 2023 

Name of the member (s): ____________________________________________________. 

Registered Address:________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________. 

E-mail ld.: _______________________________________________________________. 

Folio no. /Client ID & DPID: _______________________________________________. 

 

I/ We being a Member(s) of shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint: 

Name Email id Address Signature 

    

    

    

 

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/ our behalf at the Seventy-Third Annual 

General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, 18th September 2023 at 10:30 am the 

Registered Office of the Company at 01st Floor, Naik Building, Opp. Don Bosco High School, M.G. 

Road, Panaji North Goa-403001 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are 

indicated below: 

 

Res. 

No. 

Description For Against 

Ordinary Business  

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Standalone financial 

statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 

together with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors 

thereon; 

  

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited consolidated financial 

statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 

along with the report of Auditors thereon; 

  

3. To appoint a director in place of Dr. Shailendra P. Mittal (DIN: 

00221661), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself 

for re-appointment; 
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Special Business 

 

4. 

Re-appointment Ms. Jacinta Bazil Nayagam (DIN: 07557797), as 

independent director of the company, w.e.f from 13th November 2023; 

 

  

 

5. 

Continuation of directorship of Dr. Shaiendra P. Mittal as chairman 

and managing director who will attain the age of seventy years (70 

years) in this financial year; 

 

  

 

Signed this………………….. day of ……………2023 

 

_____________________________ 

Signature of Shareholder 

 

_______________________________ 

Signature of Proxy holder(s) 

 

Note: 

 

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 

Meeting. 

 

2. Please put a 'X' in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. 

 

If you leave the ‘For’ or' Against' column blank against any or all the resolutions, your proxy 

will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/ she thinks appropriate. 

 

3. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he/ she 

so wishes. 

 

4. In the case of joint holders, the signature of anyone holder will be sufficient, but names of all 

the joint holders should be stated. 

Affix 

Re.1/-  

Revenue 

Stamp 


